
 
MEMORANDUM         
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
Cc: Bill Boyles, Esquire 
  Aluino Ochoa, M.D. 
 
From: George Mikitarian 
  President/CEO  
 
Subject: Board/Committee Meetings – February 6, 2023 
 
Date: February 1, 2023 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Pension Committee will meet at 10:00 a.m. in the first-floor conference room. 
 
The Investment Committee will meet at 11:00 a.m. in the first-floor conference room. 
 
The Ad Hoc Credentials Review Committee will meet at 11:30 a.m. where the Committee will 
review credentialing and privileging files as they relate to medical staff 
appointment/reappointment.   
 
The Quality Committee will convene at 12:00 p.m., which will be followed by the Finance 
Committee, and then Executive Committee meetings.   
 
The Board of Directors will meet in executive session no earlier than 1:30 p.m.  Following the 
Board of Directors Executive Session, the Education Committee and Board of Directors regularly 
scheduled meeting will be held immediately following, however no earlier than 2:00 p.m.   
 
The Planning Committee meeting has been canceled. 
 



Pension Administrative Committee 
Stan Retz, Chairperson (January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2025) 
Chris McAlpine (February 1, 2022 – January 31, 2025) 
Leigh Spradling (March 1, 2022 – March 1, 2024) 
Casey Crouch (December 06, 2021 – December 05, 2023) 
Jacqueline Hurley (December 5, 2022 – March 1, 2023) 
 
 
 

 
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 

PENSION ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  
FEBRUARY 6, 2023 @ 10:00 A.M. 

FIRST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 2/3/4/5 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

     
 

I. Review and approval of minutes (December 5, 2022). 

Motion: To recommend approval of the December 5, 2022 minutes as presented. 
 

I. Pension Actuarial Report as of October 1, 2022 – Mr. Lozen, Foster & Foster 

          Motion: To recommend the Finance Committee accept the Pension Plan Actuarial 
Valuation as of October 1, 2022. 
 

II. MetLife Annual Plan Review  
 

III. Quarterly Pension, 403(b) and 457(b) Investment Update 
 

IV. Adjournment 

 
 



PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
PENSION ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

DECEMBER 5, 2022 
 

The members of the Pension Administrative Committee met on December 5, 2022 at 10:33 a.m.  
The following representing a quorum, were present: 
 
    Pension Administrative Committee: 
 Stan Retz, Chairperson 
 Chris McAlpine 

Leigh Spradling 
Casey Crouch 
 

     Others Present:  
Stephanie Parham, Executive Assistant 
Marty Penick, Director Accounting  
Tommi Middleton, Interim Director Financial Planning 
Tim Anderson, Anderson Financial Partners 
John Anderson, Anderson Financial Partners 
Julie Reyes-Mateo, Executive Director, Human Resources 

     
Call to Order 
 
The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson at 10:33a.m.  
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
 
The following motion was made by Ms. Spradling and seconded by Mr. Crouch and approved 
without objection: 
 
Action Taken: Motion to approve the PAC minutes of August 1, 2022 meeting as presented. 
 
Pension Membership Renewals 
 
Mr. McAlpine noted that Mr. Stan Retz membership on the committee will be expiring at the end 
of December 2022 and asked that his membership be renewed for another three year period. 
 
The following motion was made by Mr. Crouch and seconded by Ms. Spradling and approved 
without objection. 
 
Motion: To recommend the Board of Directors approve the renewal of membership for Stan 
Retz for a three-year term from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025. 
 
Applicant for PAC Membership 
 
Mr. McAlpine noted that due to Ms. Simpsons resignation there is a seat to fill on the committee. 
Mr. McAlpine reviewed the membership application received from Ms. Jacquelin Hurley. 
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Ms. Spradling and seconded by Mr. 
Crouch and approved without objection: 



Pension Administrative Committee Meeting 
December 5, 2022 

2 
 

 
Motion: To recommend the Board of Directors approve the appointment of membership for 
Jacqueline Hurley to the Pension Committee to serve the duration of Ms. Sylvia Simpsons 
term ending on March 1, 2023 
 
Quarterly Pension, 403(b) and 457(b) Investment Update 
 
Tim Anderson, Anderson Financial Partners, gave a brief economic commentary and reviewed 
the quarterly summary for the Pension Fund in addition to the summary of performance from the 
fund managers.  

 
MetLife Annual Plan Review 
 
The committee began the annual plan review for the 403(b) plan. Mr. Ray Abbruzzese and Mr. 
David Johnson from MetLife will attend the next regularly scheduled meeting to address any 
questions.  
 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:12a.m.   
 
 

 
_________________________ 

Stan Retz, Chairperson 



PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER, INC. 
PENSION PLAN AND TRUST FUND AGREEMENT 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2022 

CONTRIBUTIONS APPLICABLE TO THE     
PLAN/FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

GASB 67/68 DISCLOSURE INFORMATION 
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 



13420 Parker Commons Blvd., Suite 104 Fort Myers, FL 33912 ꞏ (239) 433-5500 ꞏ Fax (239) 481-0634 ꞏ www.foster-foster.com 

February 1, 2023

Board of Trustees 
Parrish Medical Center, Inc. 
Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement 

Re:  Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement 

Dear Board: 

We are pleased to present to the Board this report of the annual actuarial valuation of the Parrish Medical 

Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement.  Included are the related results for GASB 

Statements No. 67 and No. 68.  The funding valuation was performed to determine whether the assets and 

contributions are sufficient to provide the prescribed benefits and to develop the appropriate funding 

requirements for the applicable plan year.  The calculation of the liability for GASB results was 

performed for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68.  Use of 

the results for other purposes may not be applicable and may produce significantly different results. 

The valuations have been conducted in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and 

practices, including the applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice as issued by the Actuarial Standards 

Board, and reflect laws and regulations issued to date pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 112, Florida 

Statutes, as well as applicable federal laws and regulations.  In our opinion, the assumptions used in the 

valuations, as adopted by the Board of Trustees, represent reasonable expectations of anticipated plan 

experience.   

The funding percentages and unfunded accrued liability as measured based on the actuarial value of assets 

will differ from similar measures based on the market value of assets. These measures, as provided, are 

appropriate for determining the adequacy of future contributions, but may not be appropriate for the 

purpose of settling a portion or all of its liabilities. Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly 

from the current measurements presented in this report for a variety of reasons including: changes in 

applicable laws, changes in plan provisions, changes in assumptions, or plan experience differing from 

expectations.  Due to the limited scope of the valuations, we did not perform an analysis of the potential 

range of such future measurements.  



  

In conducting the valuations, we have relied on personnel, plan design, and asset information supplied by 

the Parrish Medical Center, Inc., financial reports prepared by the custodian bank, and the actuarial 

assumptions and methods described in the Actuarial Assumptions section of this report.  While we cannot 

verify the accuracy of all this information, the supplied information was reviewed for consistency and 

reasonableness.  As a result of this review, we have no reason to doubt the substantial accuracy of the 

information and believe that it has produced appropriate results.  This information, along with any 

adjustments or modifications, is summarized in various sections of this report. 

 

Additionally, we used third-party software to model (calculate) the underlying liabilities and costs. These 

results are reviewed in the aggregate and for individual sample lives. The output from the software is 

either used directly or input into internally developed models that apply the funding and accounting rules 

to generate the results. All internally developed models are reviewed as part of the valuation process. As a 

result of this review, we believe that the models have produced reasonable results. We do not believe 

there are any material inconsistencies among assumptions or unreasonable output produced due to the 

aggregation of assumptions. 

 

The total pension liability, net pension liability, and certain sensitivity information shown in this report 

are based on an actuarial valuation performed as of October 1, 2021. The total pension liability was 

rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 using 

generally accepted actuarial principles.   It is our opinion that the assumptions used for this purpose are 

internally consistent, reasonable, and comply with the requirements under GASB No. 67 and No. 68. 

  

The undersigned are familiar with the immediate and long-term aspects of pension valuations, and meet 

the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries necessary to render the actuarial 

opinions contained herein.  All of the sections of this report are considered an integral part of the actuarial 

opinions. 

 

To our knowledge, no associate of Foster & Foster, Inc. working on valuations of the program has any 

direct financial interest or indirect material interest in the Parrish Medical Center, Inc., nor does anyone at 

Foster & Foster, Inc. act as a member of the Board of Trustees of the Pension Plan and Trust Fund 

Agreement.  Thus, there is no relationship existing that might affect our capacity to prepare and certify 

this actuarial report. 

 



  

If there are any questions, concerns, or comments about any of the items contained in this report, please 

contact us at 239-433-5500. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Foster & Foster, Inc. 

 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 

Douglas H. Lozen, EA, MAAA 
Enrolled Actuary #20-7778 
 

 
 
By: _______________________________ 

Sara E. Carlson, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Enrolled Actuary #20-8546 

Enclosures 
 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Section Title Page 
 
  I Introduction  
 

a. Summary of Report 6 
 
b. Changes Since Prior Valuation 7 

 
c. Comparative Summary of Principal  
 Valuation Results 8 

 
 
 II Valuation Information 
 

a. History of Funding Progress 14 
 

b. Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 15 
 
c. Glossary  18 

 
d. Discussion of Risk 19 

 
 
III Trust Fund 22 
 
 
IV Member Statistics 
 

a. Statistical Data 28 
 
b. Age and Service Distribution 29 
 
c. Valuation Participant Reconciliation 30 

 
 
  V Summary of Current Plan 31 
 
 
 VI Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 
 No. 67 and No. 68 Disclosure Information 33 
          

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 5



SUMMARY OF REPORT 

The regular annual actuarial valuation of the Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund 

Agreement, performed as of October 1, 2022, has been completed and the results are presented in this 

Report.  The contribution amounts set forth herein are applicable to the plan/fiscal year ending September 

30, 2024. 

The contribution requirements, compared with those set forth in the October 1, 2021 actuarial valuation 

report, are as follows: 

Valuation Date 10/1/2022 10/1/2021 
Applicable to Fiscal Year Ending 9/30/2024 9/30/2023 

Minimum Required Contribution $0 $0 

Experience since the prior valuation has been less favorable than expected, relative to the Plan’s actuarial 

assumptions. The primary sources of unfavorable experience included a 5.49 % investment return (net of 

fees, Actuarial Asset Basis) that fell short of the 6.85% assumption and unfavorable retirement and 

termination experience.  These losses were partially offset by a gain due to actual benefits that were less 

than expected. 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 6



CHANGES SINCE PRIOR VALUATION 

Plan Changes 

There have been no changes in benefits since the prior valuation. 

Actuarial Assumption/Method Changes 

The PBGC lump sum interest rate (used for valuation of Vested Accrued Benefits as of January 9, 2006) 
changed from 0.87% for the first five years, 2.74% for the next 15 years and 3.16% thereafter to 5.10%, 
5.83% and 5.68%, respectively.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 7



COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL VALUATION RESULTS  

10/1/2022 10/1/2021
A. Participant Data

    Actives 316 349
    Service Retirees 116 106
    Beneficiaries 0 0
    Disability Retirees 6 6
    Terminated Vested 236 233

    Total 674 694

    Payroll Under Assumed Ret. Age N/A N/A

    Annual Rate of Payments to:
       Service Retirees 2,009,014 1,788,888
       Beneficiaries 0 0
       Disability Retirees 89,186 90,509
       Terminated Vested 1,131,940 1,075,553

B. Assets

    Actuarial Value (AVA) 67,947,994 66,031,950
    Market Value (MVA) 59,533,522                               74,327,898

C. Liabilities

    Present Value of Benefits
      Actives
           Retirement Benefits 13,621,004 15,224,823
           Disability Benefits 92,738 114,048
           Death Benefits 150,615 174,571
           Vested Benefits 1,361,350 1,928,404
      Service Retirees 20,756,236 18,432,009
      Beneficiaries 0 0
      Disability Retirees 796,525 792,587
      Terminated Vested 7,431,474 7,867,655
      PV of Future Non-Invest. Exp. 509,223 534,689

      Total 44,719,165 45,068,786

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 8



C. Liabilities - (Continued) 10/1/2022 10/1/2021

    Total Normal Cost 0 0

    Present Value of Future 
       Normal Costs (EAN) 376,847 516,409

         Accrued Liability (Retirement) 13,450,240 15,009,241
         Accrued Liability (Disability) 88,287 108,279
         Accrued Liability (Death) 144,547 166,994
         Accrued Liability (Vesting) 1,165,786 1,640,923
         Accrued Liability (Inactives)  28,984,235 27,092,251
         PV of Future Non-Invest. Exp. 509,223 534,689

    Total Actuarial Accrued Liability (EAN AL) 44,342,318 44,552,377

    Total Actuarial Accrued  
       Liability (Aggregate) 67,947,994 66,031,950

    Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
       Liability (UAAL) 0 0

    Funded Ratio (AVA / EAN AL) 153.2% 148.2%

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 9



D. Actuarial Present Value of
     Accrued Benefits 10/1/2022 10/1/2021

    Vested Accrued Benefits
       Inactives 28,984,235 27,092,251
       Actives 15,340,953 15,949,161
       Member Contributions 0 0

       Total 44,325,188 43,041,412

    Non-vested Accrued Benefits 0 1,492,686

    Total Present Value 
       Accrued Benefits (PVAB) 44,325,188 44,534,098

    Funded Ratio (MVA / PVAB) 134.3% 166.9%

    Increase (Decrease) in Present Value of
    Accrued Benefits Attributable to:
      Plan Amendments 0
      Assumption Changes 0
      Plan Experience 77,159
      Benefits Paid (3,226,159)
      Interest 2,940,090
      Other 0

      Total (208,910)

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 10



Valuation Date 10/1/2022 10/1/2021
Applicable to Fiscal Year Ending 9/30/2024 9/30/2023

E. Pension Cost

    Normal Cost  $0 $0

    Administrative Expenses  0 0

    Payment Required to Amortize
    Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
    Liability
    (as of 10/1/2022)  0 0

    Minimum Required Contribution 0 0

F. Past Contributions

    Plan Years Ending: 9/30/2022

    Minimum Required Contribution 0

    Actual Contributions Made:

Sponsor 1,625,000                  

G. Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss N/A

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 11



H. Schedule Illustrating the Amortization of the Total Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as of:

Projected Unfunded
Year Actuarial Accrued Liability 

I. 5 Year Comparison of Investment Return on Market Value and Actuarial Value

Market Value Actuarial Value Assumed

Year Ended 9/30/2022 -17.62% 5.49% 6.85%
Year Ended 9/30/2021 23.72% 11.75% 7.10%
Year Ended 9/30/2020 8.75% 9.86% 7.35%
Year Ended 9/30/2019 4.31% 7.97% 7.60%
Year Ended 9/30/2018 10.51% 8.57% 7.60%

N/A – Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 12



STATEMENT BY ENROLLED ACTUARY 

This actuarial valuation was prepared and completed by me or under my direct supervision, and I 

acknowledge responsibility for the results.  To the best of my knowledge, the results are complete and 

accurate, and in my opinion, the techniques and assumptions used are reasonable and meet the 

requirements and intent of Part VII, Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  There is no benefit or expense to be 

provided by the plan and/or paid from the plan's assets for which liabilities or current costs have not been 

established or otherwise taken into account in the valuation.  All known events or trends which may 

require a material increase in plan costs or required contribution rates have been taken into account in the 

valuation. 

________________________ 

Douglas H. Lozen, EA, MAAA 

Enrolled Actuary #20-7778 

Please let us know when the report is approved by the Board and unless otherwise directed we will 

provide a copy of the report to the following office to comply with Chapter 112 Florida Statutes: 

Mr. Keith Brinkman 

Bureau of Local 

Retirement Systems 

Post Office Box 9000 

Tallahassee, FL  32315-9000 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 13



HISTORY OF FUNDING PROGRESS

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

140.00%

160.00%

180.00%

2022202120202019201820172016201520142013

History of Funding Progress

Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Assets / EAN Actuarial Accrued Liability)

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 14



ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS 

Mortality Rate           Healthy Active Lives: 

Female: PubG.H-2010 for Employees.   
Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Employees, set back one year.   

Healthy Retiree Lives: 

Female:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees.   
Male:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median)  for Healthy 
Retirees, set back one year. 

Beneficiary Lives: 

Female:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median)  for Healthy 
Retirees.   
Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees, set back one 
year.   

Disabled Lives: 

PubG.H-2010 for Disabled Retirees, set forward three 
years. 

All rates are projected generationally with Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP-2018.  We feel this assumption 
sufficiently accommodates future mortality 
improvements. 

The previously described mortality assumption rates 
were mandated by Chapter 2015-157, Laws of Florida.  
This law mandates the use of the assumptions used in 
either of the two most recent valuations of the Florida 
Retirement System (FRS).  The above rates are those 
outlined in Milliman’s July 1, 2021 FRS valuation report 
for non-special-risk employees, with appropriate 
adjustments made based on plan demographics.   

Interest Rate  6.85% per year compounded annually, net of investment 
related expenses.  This is supported by the target asset 
allocation of the trust and the expected long-term return 
by asset class.   

Lump Sum Assumptions The minimum guaranteed lump sum (the frozen vested 
accrued benefit as of January 9, 2006) is based on the 
Plan-specific 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table for 
Males and an assumed PBGC discount rate as of each 
October 1 of the valuation year.  For the October 1, 2022 
valuation, we utilized segment rates equal to 5.10% for 
the first five years, 5.83% for the next 15 years and 
5.68% thereafter.  Effective 2021, the PBGC uses IRS 
417(e)(3) interest rates for valuing lump sums.   

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 15



The base lump sum is based on 8.00% per annum, 
compounded annually, and the mortality table prescribed 
by the Secretary of the Treasury in accordance with 
Section 417(e)(3)(A)(ii)(I) of the Internal Revenue Code, 
as applicable for the year in which the valuation is 
performed.  This is in accordance with the Plan’s 
definition of Actuarial Equivalence. 

Lump Sum Elections 60% of Members separating employment immediately 
eligible for retirement are assumed to take a lump sum.  
75% of Members separating employment not 
immediately eligible to commence a monthly benefit are 
assumed to take a lump sum.  These rates were adopted 
by the Board as a result of an Actuarial Experience 
Study dated September 10, 2021. 

Salary Increases Not Applicable. Benefits are frozen as of October 1, 
2016. 

Inflation 2.8% per year. 

Payroll Growth None necessary for amortization purposes under 
Aggregate Cost Method. 

Administrative Expenses Liability for future non-investment related expenses is 
the present value of the future anticipated expenses over 
15 years, based on the average of actual expenses 
incurred in the prior two fiscal years ($51,831).  

Normal Retirement 

Number of Years  
after first Eligible 

Current 
Retirement 

Rates ¹ 
0 – 3 25% 
4 – 9 20% 
10+ 10%

¹ 100% at Age 70, regardless of years after first eligibility. 

These rates were adopted by the Board as a result of an 
Actuarial Experience Study dated September 10, 2021. 

Early Retirement            Commencing at eligibility for Early Retirement (Age 55 
with 20 years of Credited Service), Members are 
assumed to retire with an immediate benefit at the rate of 
10% per year.  This assumption was adopted by the 
Board as the result of an Actuarial Experience Study 
dated September 10, 2021.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 16



Termination Rates 
Age Service Termination Rates 
<60 <10 15%

10 – 19 10%
20 – 29 6%

30+ 0%
60 - 64 <30 15% 

30+ 0%
65+ All Svc 0% 

These rates were adopted by the Board as a result of an 
Actuarial Experience Study dated September 10, 2021.    

Disability Rates 

Age 
 Disability 

Rates 
20 0.007%
25 0.009
30 0.011
35 0.014
40 0.019
45 0.030
50 0.051
55 0.096
60 0.166
65 ----

The sample disability rates were adopted by the Board as 
a result of an Actuarial Experience Study dated 
September 10, 2021. 

Post Retirement COLA             Not applicable. 

Funding Method Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method. 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 17



GLOSSARY 

Actuarial Value of Assets is the asset value used in the valuation to determine contribution requirements.  

It represents the plan’s Market Value of Assets (see below), with adjustments according to the plan’s 

Actuarial Asset Method.  These adjustments produce a “smoothed” value that is likely to be less volatile 

from year to year than the Market Value of Assets. 

Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method (Level Dollar) is the method used to determine required contributions 

under the Plan.  The use of this method involves the systematic funding of the Normal Cost. 

Market Value of Assets is the fair market value of plan assets as of the valuation date.  This amount 

may be adjusted to produce an Actuarial Value of Assets for plan funding purposes. 

Normal (Current Year's) Cost Rate is the current year’s cost for benefits yet to be funded and is 

determined in the aggregate as the ratio of (a) and (b) as follows:  

(a) The present value of benefits for all Plan participants, less the actuarial value of assets.

(a) The total expected future working lifetime of the active participants, determined as of the

valuation date.

The Normal Cost dollar requirement is the ratio of (a) and (b), multiplied by the Total Active 

Participants as of the valuation date. 

Present Value of Benefits is the single sum value on the valuation date of all future benefits to be paid 

to current plan participants. 

Total Required Contribution is equal to the Normal Cost plus an adjustment for interest according to the 

timing of sponsor contributions during the year. 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 18



DISCUSSION OF RISK 

ASOP No. 51, Assessment and Disclosure of Risk Associated with Measuring Pension Obligations and 
Determining Pension Plan Contributions, states that the actuary should identify risks that, in the actuary’s 
professional judgment, may reasonably be anticipated to significantly affect the plan’s future financial 
condition.    

Throughout this report, actuarial results are determined using various actuarial assumptions.  These 
results are based on the premise that all future plan experience will align with the plan’s actuarial 
assumptions; however, there is no guarantee that actual plan experience will align with the plan’s 
assumptions.  It is possible that actual plan experience will differ from anticipated experience in an 
unfavorable manner that will negatively impact the plan’s funded position.    

Below are examples of ways in which plan experience can deviate from assumptions and the potential 
impact of that deviation.  The aggregate gain or loss resulting from the current-year experience differing 
from the assumptions is amortized over the average future working lifetime of the plan’s active 
membership.  When assumptions are selected that adequately reflect plan experience, gains and losses 
typically offset one another in the long term, resulting in a relatively low impact on the plan’s 
contribution requirement associated with plan experience.   When assumptions are too optimistic, the 
plan’s contribution requirements could potentially grow to an unmanageable level.  

 Investment Return: When the rate of return on the Actuarial Value of Assets falls short of the
assumption, this produces a loss representing assumed investment earnings that were not
realized.  Further, it is unlikely that the plan will experience a scenario that matches the assumed
return in each year as capital markets can be volatile from year to year.  Therefore, contribution
amounts can vary in the future.

 Demographic Assumptions: Actuarial results take into account various potential events that could
happen to a plan participant, such as retirement, termination, disability, and death.  Each of these
potential events is assigned a liability based on the likelihood of the event and the financial
consequence of the event for the plan.  Accordingly, actuarial liabilities reflect a blend of
financial consequences associated with various possible outcomes (such as retirement at one of
various possible ages).  Once the outcome is known (e.g. the participant retires) the liability is
adjusted to reflect the known outcome.  This adjustment produces a gain or loss depending on
whether the outcome was more or less favorable than other outcomes that could have occurred.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 19



Impact of Plan Maturity on Risk 

For newer pension plans, most of the participants and associated liabilities are related to active members 
who have not yet reached retirement age.  As pension plans continue in operation and active members 
reach retirement ages, liabilities begin to shift from being primarily related to active members to being 
shared amongst active and retired members.  Plan maturity is a measure of the extent to which this shift 
has occurred. It is important to understand that plan maturity can have an impact on risk tolerance and the 
overall risk characteristics of the plan. For example, closed plans with a large amount of retired liability 
do not have as long of a time horizon to recover from losses (such as losses on investments due to lower 
than expected investment returns) as plans where the majority of the liability is attributable to active 
members.  For this reason, less tolerance for investment risk may be warranted for highly mature closed 
plans with a substantial inactive liability.  Similarly, mature closed plans paying substantial retirement 
benefits resulting in a small positive or net negative cash flow can be more sensitive to near term 
investment volatility, particularly if the size of the fund is shrinking, which can result in less assets being 
available for investment in the market.  

To assist with determining the maturity of the plan, we have provided some relevant metrics in the table  
following titled “Plan Maturity Measures and Other Risk Metrics”.  Highlights of this information are  
discussed below:   

• The Support Ratio, determined as the ratio of active to inactive members, has decreased from 568.6% 
on October 1, 2012 to 88.3% on October 1, 2022, indicating that the plan has been maturing during 
the period.

• The Accrued Liability Ratio, determined as the ratio of the Inactive Accrued Liability, which is the 
liability associated with members who are no longer employed but are due a benefit from the plan, to 
the Total Accrued Liability, is 65.4%.  With a plan of this maturity, losses due to lower than expected 
investment returns or demographic factors may result in larger increases in contribution requirements 
than would be needed for a less mature plan.  Please note Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, requires that 
the plan sponsor contributes the minimum required contribution; thus, there is minimal solvency risk 
to the plan.

• The Funded Ratio, determined as the ratio of the Actuarial Value of Assets to the Total Accrued 
Liability, has increased from 106.5% on October 1, 2012 to 153.2% on October 1, 2022.

• The Net Cash Flow Ratio, determined as the ratio of the Net Cash Flow (contributions minus benefit 
payments and administrative expenses) to the Market Value of Assets, decreased from -0.1% on 
October 1, 2012 to -2.8% on October 1, 2022. The current Net Cash Flow Ratio of -2.8% indicates 
that contributions are not currently covering the plan's benefit payments and administrative expenses. 

It is important to note that the actuary has identified the risks in this section as the most significant risks 
based on the characteristics of the plan and the nature of the project, however, it is not an exhaustive list 
of potential risks that could be considered.  Additional advanced modeling, as well as the identification of 
additional risks, can be provided at the request of the audience addressed on page 2 of this report.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 20



PLAN MATURITY MEASURES AND OTHER RISK METRICS

10/1/2022 10/1/2021 10/1/2017 10/1/2012

Support Ratio

316 349 650 870
358 345 266 153

88.3% 101.2% 244.4% 568.6%

Total Actives
Total Inactives 
Actives / Inactives 

Accrued Liability (AL) Ratio

28,984,235 27,092,251 17,398,233 7,918,744
44,342,318 44,552,377 41,679,981 43,866,575

65.4% 60.8% 41.7% 18.1%

67,947,994 66,031,950 58,813,949 46,730,757
44,342,318 44,552,377 41,679,981 43,866,575

153.2% 148.2% 141.1% 106.5%

(1,663,747) (3,388,524) (5,559,092) (27,387)
59,533,522 74,327,898 60,740,810 48,734,856

Inactive Accrued Liability
Total Accrued Liability (EAN) 
Inactive AL / Total AL

Funded Ratio

Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) 
Total Accrued Liability (EAN) 
AVA / Total Accrued Liability (EAN)

Net Cash Flow Ratio

Net Cash Flow ¹
Market Value of Assets (MVA) 
Ratio -2.8% -4.6% -9.2% -0.1%

¹ Determined as total contributions minus benefit payments and administrative expenses.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 21



ASSETS COST VALUE MARKET VALUE
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
  Short Term Investments 2,034,535.11 2,034,535.11
  Money Market 81,566.28 81,566.28
  Cash 36,315.32 36,315.32

Total Cash and Equivalents 2,152,416.71 2,152,416.71

Receivables:
  Investment Income 169,196.18 169,196.18

Total Receivable 169,196.18 169,196.18

Investments:
  Fixed Income 24,733,465.87 21,554,924.62
  Equities 22,477,841.48 21,031,730.08
  Miscellaneous 3,716,264.81 4,720,930.90
  Stocks 5,911,923.39 7,626,784.21
  Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds:
    Real Estate 1,519,681.82 2,410,720.42

Total Investments 58,359,177.37 57,345,090.23

Total Assets 60,680,790.26 59,666,703.12

LIABILITIES 
Payables:
  Lump Sum Distributions 130,181.57 130,181.57
  Benefit Payments 2,999.76 2,999.76

Total Liabilities 133,181.33 133,181.33

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS 60,547,608.93 59,533,521.79

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 22



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Market Value Basis

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
 Employer 1,625,000.00

Total Contributions 1,625,000.00

Investment Income:
 Net Realized Gain (Loss)
 Unrealized Gain (Loss)

(436,308.38) 
(14,064,567.72)

 Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments (14,500,876.10)
 Interest & Dividends 1,753,047.01
 Less Investment Expense¹ (382,799.97)

Net Investment Income (13,130,629.06)

Total Additions (11,505,629.06)

DEDUCTIONS
Distributions to Members:
 Benefit Payments 2,029,993.02
 Lump Sum Distributions 1,196,165.76

Total Distributions 3,226,158.78

Administrative Expense 62,588.02

Total Deductions 3,288,746.80

Net Increase in Net Position (14,794,375.86)

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS
Beginning of the Year 74,327,897.65

End of the Year 59,533,521.79

¹Investment related expenses include investment advisory, custodial and performance monitoring fees.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 23



Plan Year
Ending Gain/(Loss) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

09/30/2018 1,747,061 0 0 0 0 0
09/30/2019 (2,010,290) (402,058) 0 0 0 0
09/30/2020 866,327 346,532 173,267 0 0 0
09/30/2021 10,288,568 6,173,140 4,115,426 2,057,712 0 0
09/30/2022 (18,165,107) (14,532,086) (10,899,065) (7,266,044) (3,633,023) 0

Total (8,414,472) (6,610,372) (5,208,332) (3,633,023) 0

Market Value of Assets, 09/30/2021 74,327,898
Contributions Less Benefit Payments & Admin Expenses (1,663,747)
Expected Investment Earnings* 5,034,478
Actual Net Investment Earnings (13,130,629)
2022 Actuarial Investment Gain/(Loss) (18,165,107)

*Expected Investment Earnings = 0.0685 * [74,327,898 + 0.5 * (1,663,747)]

(1) Market Value of Assets, 09/30/2022 59,533,522
(2) Gain/(Loss) Not Yet Recognized (8,414,472)
(3) Actuarial Value of Assets, 09/30/2022, (1) - (2) 67,947,994

(A) 09/30/2021 Actuarial Assets: 66,031,950

(I) Net Investment Income:
1. Interest and Dividends 1,753,047
2. Realized Gain (Loss) (436,308)
3. Unrealized Gain (Loss) (14,064,568)
4. Change in Actuarial Value 16,710,420
5. Investment Expenses (382,800)

Total 3,579,791

(B) 09/30/2022 Actuarial Assets: 67,947,994

Actuarial Assets Rate of Return = 2I/(A+B-I): 5.49%
Market Value of Assets Rate of Return: -17.62%

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) due to Investment Return (Actuarial Asset Basis) (886,414)

     10/01/2022 Limited Actuarial Assets: 67,947,994

    Amounts Not Yet Recognized by Valuation Year

Development of Investment Gain/(Loss)

Development of Actuarial Value of Assets

ACTUARIAL ASSET VALUATION
September 30, 2022

Actuarial Assets for funding purposes are developed by recognizing the total actuarial investment gain or loss for each Plan 
Year over a five year period.  In the first year, 20% of the gain or loss is recognized.  In the second year 40%, in the third 
year 60%, in the fourth year 80%, and in the fifth year 100% of the gain or loss is recognized.  The actuarial investment 
gain or loss is defined as the actual return on investments minus the actuarial assumed investment return. Actuarial Assets 
shall not be less than 80% nor greater than 120% of Market Value of Assets.

Gains/(Losses) Not Yet Recognized

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 24



SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
Actuarial Asset Basis

REVENUES
Contributions:
  Employer 1,625,000.00

Total Contributions 1,625,000.00

Earnings from Investments:
  Interest & Dividends 1,753,047.01
  Net Realized Gain (Loss) (436,308.38)
  Unrealized Gain (Loss) (14,064,567.72)
  Change in Actuarial Value 16,710,420.00

Total Earnings and Investment Gains 3,962,590.91

EXPENDITURES
Distributions to Members:
  Benefit Payments 2,029,993.02
  Lump Sum Distributions 1,196,165.76

Total Distributions 3,226,158.78

Expenses:

  Investment related¹ 382,799.97
  Administrative 62,588.02

Total Expenses 445,387.99

Change in Net Assets for the Year 1,916,044.14

Net Assets Beginning of the Year 66,031,949.65

Net Assets End of the Year² 67,947,993.79

¹Investment related expenses include investment advisory, custodial and performance monitoring fees.
²Net Assets may be limited for actuarial consideration.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 25



$0.00

0.00

(1,625,000.00)

($1,625,000.00)

(1) Required Sponsor Contributions

(2) Less 2021 Prepaid Contribution

(3) Less Actual Sponsor Contributions

(4) Sponsor Contributions in Excess of Minimum Requirement Applied to
Reduce Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as of September 30, 2022

SPONSOR CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF MINIMUM REQUIREMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED (FYE) SEPTEMBER 30, 2022  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 26



HISTORY OF ASSET VALUES AND INVESTMENT RETURNS

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

70,000,000

80,000,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

History of Asset Values
(Market Value vs. Actuarial Value)

Actuarial Value of Assets Market Value of Assets

-20.00%

-15.00%

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

History of Investment Returns
(Market Value vs. Actuarial Value)

Return on Actuarial Value of Assets Return on Market Value of Assets Assumed Return

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 27



STATISTICAL DATA

10/1/2022 10/1/2021 10/1/2020 10/1/2019

Actives

316 349 399 456
50.6 49.9 49.0 48.4
33.6 33.7 34.0 34.4
17.0 16.2 15.0 14.0
N/A N/A N/A N/A

116 106 104 97
71.4 71.5 71.2 71.5

$17,319 $16,876 $17,131 $16,622

0 0 0 1
N/A N/A N/A 81.8
N/A N/A N/A $2,968

6 6 6 6
62.9 65.3 64.3 63.3

$14,864 $15,085 $15,085 $15,085

236 233 213 202
54.9 54.4 55.3 55.2

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Age at Employment 
Average Past Service 
Average Annual Salary

Service Retirees

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Annual Benefit

Beneficiaries

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Annual Benefit

Disability Retirees

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Annual Benefit

Terminated Vested

Number
Average Current Age  
Average Annual Benefit ¹ $5,289 $5,516 $5,698 $5,692

 ¹ The Average Annual Benefit reflects only participants due annuities.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 28



AGE AND SERVICE DISTRIBUTION  

PAST SERVICE  

AGE  0 1 2 3 4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30+ Total

15 - 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

20 - 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

25 - 29 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 8

30 - 34 0 0 0 0 0 13 4 1 0 0 0 18

35 - 39 0 0 0 0 0 12 13 10 1 0 0 36

40 - 44 0 0 0 0 0 10 13 18 2 1 0 44

45 - 49 0 0 0 0 0 6 8 7 6 2 0 29

50 - 54 0 0 0 0 0 9 9 10 5 5 3 41

55 - 59 0 0 0 0 0 6 8 13 11 11 9 58

60 - 64 0 0 0 0 0 7 5 16 13 6 8 55

65+ 0 0 0 0 0 6 3 8 5 2 3 27

Total 0 0 0 0 0 77 63 83 43 27 23 316

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 29



VALUATION PARTICIPANT RECONCILIATION  

349

(18)
(7)

0
(1)
0

(7)
316

0

316

1. Active lives

a. Number in prior valuation 10/1/2021

b. Terminations
i. Vested (partial or full) with deferred annuity

ii. Full lump sum distribution received
c. Deaths

i. Beneficiary receiving benefits
ii. No future benefits payable

d. Disabled
e. Retired
f. Continuing participants
g. New entrants

h. Total active life participants in valuation

2. Non-Active lives (including beneficiaries receiving benefits)

Service
Retirees,
Vested Receiving Receiving Vested

Receiving Death Disability (Deferred
Benefits Benefits Benefits Annuity) Total

106 0 6 233 345

12 0 0 (5) 7
0 0 0 18 18
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
(2) 0 (1) 0 (3)
0 0 1 (1) 0
0 0 0 (9) (9)
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

a. Number prior valuation

Retired
Vested (Deferred Annuity) 
Vested (Due Refund)
Hired/Terminated in Same Year 
Death, With Survivor
Death, No Survivor
Disabled
Lump Sum Distribution   
Rehires
Expired Annuities
Data Corrections

b. Number current valuation 116 0 6 236 358

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 30



SUMMARY OF CURRENT PLAN 
 

Eligibility Full-time or part-time employees who regularly work at 
least 20 hours per week and five (5) months per year and 
who perform at least 1000 hours of service per year may 
participate after 1 year of continuous service.  The 
defined benefit pension plan was closed and frozen 
effective September 30, 2016. 

 
Continuous Service Total years and completed months of continuous 

employment as an eligible employee participating in the 
Plan.  If the employee has previously received a cash-out 
of the value of a previous benefit, service will be 
credited only if the prior service is purchased. 

 
Earnings Basic compensation paid at the base rate, excluding 

commissions, overtime, bonuses and any other non-
regular payments.  

 
Average Monthly Earnings Average Compensation for the highest 60 consecutive 

months of the 10 years immediately preceding 
retirement or termination. The average is frozen as of 
October 1, 2016. 

 
Member Contributions None. 
 
Employer Contributions Remaining amount required in order to pay current costs 

and amortize unfunded past service cost, if any, as 
provided in Part VII, Chapter 112, F.S.  

 
Normal Retirement 
 

 Date Earlier of: 1) age 65, regardless of Continuous Service, 
2) age 60 and 25 years of Continuous Service, or 3) 30 
years of Continuous Service, regardless of Age. 

 
 Benefit 1.75% of Average Monthly Earnings up to $1,000, plus 

1.50% of average Monthly Earnings in excess of $1,000, 
times Continuous Service. Benefit accruals are frozen as 
of October 1, 2016. 

 
 Form of Benefit Life Annuity (options available). 

 
Early Retirement 
 

 Eligibility Age 55 with 20 years of Continuous Service.  
 

 Benefit Accrued benefit, reduced 6.67% for each of the first five 
years, and 3.33% for each of the next five years by 
which the benefit commencement date precedes Age 65. 

 
 

 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 31



Vesting 
 

 Schedule  
Years of Service Vested Percentage 

Less than 5 None 
5 50% 
6 60 
7 70 
8 80 
9 90 

10 or More 100 
  

Benefit Amount Member will receive the vested portion of his (her) 
accrued benefit payable at the otherwise Early (reduced) 
or Age 65. 

 
Disability 
 

 Eligibility 10 years of Continuous Service 
 

Exclusions Disability resulting from use of drugs, 
illegal participation in riots, service in military, etc. 

 

Benefit Normal Retirement benefit accrued to date of disability 
(no reduction for commencement before Normal 
Retirement date). Accrued benefits are frozen as of 
October 1, 2016. 

 
Duration Payable for life or until recovery (as determined by the 

Board).   
 
Death Benefits 
  

 Eligibility 5 years of Continuous Service 
 

Benefit Accrued benefit as of the date of death, payable as a 
lump sum. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 32



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

  Short Term Investments

  Money Market

  Cash

Total Cash and Equivalents

Receivables:

  Investment Income

Total Receivable

Investments:

  Fixed Income

  Equities

  Miscellaneous

  Stocks

  Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds:

    Real Estate

Total Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES 

Payables:

  Lump Sum Distributions

  Benefit Payments

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS

   MARKET VALUE

2,034,535

81,566

36,316

2,152,417

169,196

169,196

21,554,925

21,031,730

4,720,931

7,626,784

2,410,721

57,345,091

59,666,704

130,182

3,000

133,182

59,533,522

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 33



ADDITIONS

Contributions:

  Employer 1,625,000

Total Contributions 1,625,000

Investment Income:

  Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments (14,500,876)

  Interest & Dividends 1,753,047

  Less Investment Expense¹ (382,800)

Net Investment Income (13,130,629)

Total Additions (11,505,629)

DEDUCTIONS

Distributions to Members:

  Benefit Payments 2,029,993

  Lump Sum Distributions 1,196,166

Total Distributions 3,226,159

Administrative Expense 62,588

Total Deductions 3,288,747

Net Increase in Net Position (14,794,376)

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS

Beginning of the Year 74,327,898

End of the Year 59,533,522

¹Investment related expenses include investment advisory, custodial and performance monitoring fees.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Market Value Basis

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 34



Plan Administration

Plan Membership as of October 1, 2021:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 112              

Inactive Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 233              

Active Plan Members 349              

694              

Benefits Provided

Contributions

Member Contributions: None.

Investment Policy:

The following was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy as of September 30, 2022:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Large Cap Equity 35%

Mid and Small Cap 20%

International Equity 5%

Alternatives 10%

Fixed Income 30%

Total 100%

Concentrations: 

Rate of Return:

(For the Year Ended September 30, 2022)

The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Hospital Board may appoint a committee of four or more persons 

to be known as the Pension Administrative Committee to assist with the administration of the Plan. At least one member of the 

Committee shall come from each of the following groups:

- a member of the Board;

- a member of the management group of the Employer;

- an Employee of the Employer;

- a representative from the Employer's community.

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the annual money-weighted rate of return on Pension Plan investments, net of Pension Plan 

investment expense, was -17.62 percent.

The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 

amounts actually invested.

Employer Contributions: Remaining amount required in order to pay current costs and amortize unfunded past service cost, if any, 

as provided in Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  

A summary of the benefit provisions can be found in the October 1, 2021 Actuarial Valuation Report for Parrish Medical Center, 

Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

Full-time or part-time employees who regularly work at least 20 hours per week and five (5) months per year and who perform at 

least 1000 hours of service per year may participate after 1 year of continuous service. The defined benefit pension plan was closed 

and frozen effective September 30, 2016.

The Plan did not hold investments in any one organization that represent 5 percent or more of the Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net 

Position.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Plan provides retirement, termination, disability and death benefits.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 35



The components of the Net Pension Liability of the Sponsor on September 30, 2022 were as follows:

Total Pension Liability 43,511,637$    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position (59,533,522)$  

Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (16,021,885)$  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of Total Pension Liability 136.82%

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation 2.80%

Salary Increases N/A Benefits are frozen as of September 30, 2016.

Discount Rate 6.85%

Investment Rate of Return 6.85%

Mortality Rate Healthy Active Lives:

Female: PubG.H-2010 for Employees. 

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Employees, set back one year.  

Mortality Rate Healthy Retiree Lives:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.

Mortality Rate Beneficiary Lives:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.  

Mortality Rate Disabled Lives:

PubG.H-2010 for Disabled Retirees, set forward three years.

NET PENSION LIABILITY OF THE SPONSOR

The Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments can be determined using a building-block method in which 

best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of Pension Plan investment expenses and 

inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return by weighting the expected future real rates of 

return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The most recent actuarial experience study used to review the other significant assumptions was dated September 10, 2021.

For 2022 the inflation rate assumption of the investment advisor was 2.50%.

The above described mortality assumption rates were mandated by Chapter 2015-157, Laws of Florida.  This law mandates the use 

of the assumptions used in either of the two most recent valuations of the Florida Retirement System (FRS).  The above rates are 

those outlined in Milliman’s July 1, 2021 FRS valuation report for non-special-risk employees. We feel this assumption 

sufficiently accommodates future mortality improvements.

All rates are projected generationally with Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018.  

The Total Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2021 updated to September 30, 2022 using 

the following actuarial assumptions:

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 36



Large Cap Equity

Mid and Small Cap

International Equity

Alternatives

Fixed Income

¹ Source: Anderson Financial Partners, Inc.

Discount Rate:

The Discount Rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.85 percent.

1% Decrease 

Current 

Discount Rate 1% Increase 

5.85% 6.85% 7.85%

Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (12,938,055)$  (16,021,885)$  (18,659,454)$  

Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Pension Plan's target asset allocation as of 

September 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Long Term Expected Real Rate of 

Return¹

10.0%

4.5%

The projection of cash flows used to determine the Discount Rate assumed that Plan Member contributions will be made at the 

current contribution rate and that Sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 

determined contribution rates and the Member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the Long-Term 

Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 

Total Pension Liability.

10.0%

10.0%

10.0%

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 37



09/30/2022 09/30/2021 09/30/2020

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost 204,975          394,962          486,190          

Interest 2,948,462       2,846,366       3,001,709       

Changes of benefit terms -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience (866,981)        (893,533)        (532,461)        

Changes of assumptions -                 4,082,572       370,157          

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (939,703)        3,082,916       (1,295,514)     

Total Pension Liability - Beginning      44,451,340      41,368,424      42,663,938 

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 43,511,637$   44,451,340$   41,368,424$   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer 1,625,000       -                 -                 

Net Investment Income (13,130,629)   14,646,256     5,285,797       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Administrative Expense (62,588)          (41,073)          (67,772)          

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (14,794,376)   11,257,732     596,916          

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning      74,327,898      63,070,166      62,473,250 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)  $  59,533,522  $  74,327,898  $  63,070,166 

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) (16,021,885)$ (29,876,558)$ (21,701,742)$ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the Total Pension Liability 136.82% 167.21% 152.46%

Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Net Pension Liability as a percentage of Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of assumptions:

retirement and 75% for all other vested members.

5) Reduced the disability rates by 90%.

For measurement date 09/30/2021, the following the changes were made to the assumptions as a result of the experience study 

dated September 10, 2021:

1) Investment return assumption was reduced from 7.10% to 6.85%, net of investment related expenses.

2) Adjusted the normal and early retirement rates, resulting in generally more retirements than previously assumed.

3) Adjusted the assumed rates of withdrawal, resulting in generally more withdrawals than previously assumed.  

4) Reduced the lump sum election assumption from 100% to 60% for those separating employment immediately eligible for 

Additionally, moved from an age-based table to an age and service-based table.

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 38



Fiscal Year Ended

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution

Contributions 

in relation to 

the Actuarially 

Determined 

Contributions

Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess)

Covered 

Payroll

Contributions 

as a percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll

09/30/2022 -$               1,625,000$     (1,625,000)$   N/A N/A

09/30/2021 -$               -$               -$               N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date: 10/01/2020

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates can be found in the October 1, 2020 Actuarial Valuation for 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which 

contributions are reported.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 39



Fiscal Year Ended

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return 

Net of Investment Expense

09/30/2022 -17.62%

09/30/2021 23.72%

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 40



Plan Description

Plan Membership as of October 1, 2021:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 112              

Inactive Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 233              

Active Plan Members 349              

694              

Benefits Provided

Contributions

Member Contributions: None.

Net Pension Liability 

The measurement date is September 30, 2022.

The measurement period for the pension expense was October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022.

The reporting period is October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023.

The Sponsor's Net Pension Liability was measured as of September 30, 2022.

The Total Pension Liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation 2.80%

Salary Increases N/A Benefits are frozen as of September 30, 2016.

Discount Rate 6.85%

Investment Rate of Return 6.85%

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(For the Year Ended September 30, 2023)

The Total Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2021 updated to September 30, 2022 using 

the following actuarial assumptions:

The Plan provides retirement, termination, disability and death benefits.

The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Hospital Board may appoint a committee of four or more persons 

to be known as the Pension Administrative Committee to assist with the administration of the Plan. At least one member of the 

Committee shall come from each of the following groups:

- a member of the Board;

- a member of the management group of the Employer;

- an Employee of the Employer;

- a representative from the Employer's community.

Full-time or part-time employees who regularly work at least 20 hours per week and five (5) months per year and who perform at 

least 1000 hours of service per year may participate after 1 year of continuous service. The defined benefit pension plan was 

closed and frozen effective September 30, 2016.

A summary of the benefit provisions can be found in the October 1, 2021 Actuarial Valuation Report for Parrish Medical Center, 

Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

Employer Contributions: Remaining amount required in order to pay current costs and amortize unfunded past service cost, if any, 

as provided in Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 41



Mortality Rate Healthy Active Lives:

Female: PubG.H-2010 for Employees. 

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Employees, set back one year.  

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long Term Expected 

Real Rate of Return¹

Large Cap Equity 35% 10.0%

Mid and Small Cap 20% 10.0%

International Equity 5% 10.0%

Alternatives 10% 10.0%

Fixed Income 30% 4.5%

Total 100%

¹ Source: Anderson Financial Partners, Inc.

Discount Rate:

The Discount Rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.85 percent.

Mortality Rate Healthy Retiree Lives:

These ranges are combined to produce the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return by weighting the expected future real rates of 

return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the Discount Rate assumed that Plan Member contributions will be made at the 

current contribution rate and that Sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 

determined contribution rates and the Member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the Long-Term 

Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 

Total Pension Liability.

The most recent actuarial experience study used to review the other significant assumptions was dated September 10, 2021.

Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Pension Plan's target asset allocation as 

of September 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.

Mortality Rate Disabled Lives:

PubG.H-2010 for Disabled Retirees, set forward three years.

All rates are projected generationally with Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018.  

For 2022 the inflation rate assumption of the investment advisor was 2.50%.

The Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments can be determined using a building-block method in which 

best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of Pension Plan investment expenses and 

inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

The above described mortality assumption rates were mandated by Chapter 2015-157, Laws of Florida.  This law mandates the 

use of the assumptions used in either of the two most recent valuations of the Florida Retirement System (FRS).  The above rates 

are those outlined in Milliman’s July 1, 2021 FRS valuation report for non-special-risk employees. We feel this assumption 

sufficiently accommodates future mortality improvements.

Mortality Rate Beneficiary Lives:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 42



Total Pension 

Liability

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position

Net Pension 

Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)

Reporting Period Ending September 30, 2022  $  44,451,340  $  74,327,898  $ (29,876,558)

Changes for a Year:

Service Cost           204,975                       -           204,975 

Interest        2,948,462                       -        2,948,462 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience          (866,981)                       -          (866,981)

Changes of assumptions                       -                       -                       - 

Changes of benefit terms                       -                       -                       - 

Contributions - Employer                       -        1,625,000       (1,625,000)

Net Investment Income                       -     (13,130,629)      13,130,629 

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions       (3,226,159)       (3,226,159)                       - 

Administrative Expense                       -            (62,588)             62,588 

Net Changes          (939,703)     (14,794,376)      13,854,673 

Reporting Period Ending September 30, 2023  $  43,511,637  $  59,533,522  $ (16,021,885)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the Discount Rate.

1% Decrease 

Current 

Discount Rate 1% Increase 

5.85% 6.85% 7.85%

Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (12,938,055)$ (16,021,885)$ (18,659,454)$ 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.  

Detailed information about the pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately issued Plan financial report.

Increase (Decrease)

CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 43



For the year ended September 30, 2022, the Sponsor has recognized a Pension Expense of -$2,442,075.

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 1,094,418        2,846,893        

Changes of assumptions 4,042,462        -                  

Net difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan investments -                  8,295,946        

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,625,000        -                  

Total 6,761,880$      11,142,839$    

OUTFLOW

Year ended September 30:

2023 132,481$                    1,205,239$      (871,644)$       

2024 132,481$                    1,205,239$      (1,096,788)$    

2025 132,481$                    1,205,239$      (1,979,814)$    
2026 132,482$                    1,238,008$      (2,057,713)$    

2027 132,482$                    -$                    -$                    

Thereafter 264,964$                    -$                    -$                    

FINAL PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED 

INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS

On September 30, 2022, the Sponsor reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to 

pensions from the following sources:

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions will be 

recognized in Pension Expense as follows:

FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

The outcome of the Deferred Outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date has been recognized as a reduction of the net Pension Liability in the year ended September 30, 2022.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 44



For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Sponsor will recognize a Pension Expense of $726,180.

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 480,968           2,494,617        

Changes of assumptions 2,346,712        -                  

Net difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan investments 8,414,471        -                  

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date TBD -                  

Total TBD 2,494,617$      

OUTFLOW INFLOW

Year ended September 30:

2024 (657,968)$                   1,173,356$             1,804,100$      2,319,488$      

2025 (1,138,936)$                1,173,356$             1,402,042$      1,436,462$      

2026 (216,745)$                   -$                            1,575,308$      1,358,563$      

2027 -$                                -$                            3,633,021$      3,633,021$      

2028 -$                                -$                            -$                    -$                    

Thereafter -$                                -$                            -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS

On September 30, 2023, the Sponsor reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to 

pensions from the following sources:

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions will be 

recognized in Pension Expense as follows:

The outcome of the Deferred Outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net Pension Liability in the year ended September 30, 2023.

FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 45



Reporting Period Ending 09/30/2023 09/30/2022 09/30/2021

Measurement Date 09/30/2022 09/30/2021 09/30/2020

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost 204,975          394,962          486,190          

Interest 2,948,462       2,846,366       3,001,709       

Changes of benefit terms -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience (866,981)        (893,533)        (532,461)        

Changes of assumptions -                 4,082,572       370,157          

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (939,703)        3,082,916       (1,295,514)     

Total Pension Liability - Beginning      44,451,340      41,368,424      42,663,938 

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)  $  43,511,637 44,451,340$   41,368,424$   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer 1,625,000       -                 -                 

Net Investment Income (13,130,629)   14,646,256     5,285,797       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Administrative Expense (62,588)          (41,073)          (67,772)          

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (14,794,376)   11,257,732     596,916          

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning      74,327,898      63,070,166      62,473,250 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)  $  59,533,522  $  74,327,898  $  63,070,166 

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) (16,021,885)$ (29,876,558)$ (21,701,742)$ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the Total Pension Liability 136.82% 167.21% 152.46%

Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Net Pension Liability as a percentage of Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of assumptions:

retirement and 75% for all other vested members.

5) Reduced the disability rates by 90%.

4) Reduced the lump sum election assumption from 100% to 60% for those separating employment immediately eligible for 

1) Investment return assumption was reduced from 7.10% to 6.85%, net of investment related expenses.

Additionally, moved from an age-based table to an age and service-based table.

For measurement date 09/30/2021, the following the changes were made to the assumptions as a result of the experience study 

dated September 10, 2021:

2) Adjusted the normal and early retirement rates, resulting in generally more retirements than previously assumed.

3) Adjusted the assumed rates of withdrawal, resulting in generally more withdrawals than previously assumed.  

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 46



Fiscal Year Ended

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution

Contributions 

in relation to 

the Actuarially 

Determined 

Contributions

Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess)

Covered 

Payroll

Contributions 

as a percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll

09/30/2022 -$                1,625,000$     (1,625,000)$   N/A N/A

09/30/2021 -$                -$               -$               N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date: 10/01/2020

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates can be found in the October 1, 2020 Actuarial Valuation for Parrish 

Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which 

contributions are reported.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 47



EXPENSE DEVELOPMENT AND AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES

The following information is not required to be disclosed but is provided for informational purposes.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 48



Net Pension 

Liability

Deferred 

Inflows

Deferred 

Outflows

Pension 

Expense

Beginning balance  $ (21,701,742)  $    4,934,914  $    4,661,696  $                 -   

Employer Contributions made after September 30, 2021 -                 -                 1,625,000       -                 

Total Pension Liability Factors:

Service Cost 394,962          -                 -                 394,962          

Interest 2,846,366       -                 -                 2,846,366       

Changes in benefit terms -                 -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

with regard to economic or demographic assumptions (893,533)        893,533          -                 -                 

Current year amortization of experience difference -                 (1,002,512)     (613,450)        (389,062)        

Change in assumptions about future economic or 

demographic factors or other inputs 4,082,572       -                 4,082,572       -                 

Current year amortization of change in assumptions -                 -                 (1,787,764)     1,787,764       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,347,451)     -                 -                 -                 

Net change 3,082,916       (108,979)        3,306,358       4,640,030       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Projected Net Investment Income 4,357,689       -                 -                 (4,357,689)     

Difference between projected and actual earnings on 

Pension Plan investments 10,288,567     10,288,567     -                 -                 

Current year amortization -                 (3,167,547)     (402,058)        (2,765,489)     

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,347,451)     -                 -                 -                 

Administrative Expenses (41,073)          -                 -                 41,073            

Net change 11,257,732     7,121,020       (402,058)        (7,082,105)     

Ending Balance  $ (29,876,558)  $  11,946,955  $    7,565,996  $   (2,442,075)

FINAL COMPONENTS OF PENSION EXPENSE
FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 49



Net Pension 

Liability

Deferred 

Inflows

Deferred 

Outflows

Pension 

Expense

Beginning balance  $ (29,876,558)  $  11,946,955  $    7,565,996  $                 -   

Employer Contributions made after September 30, 2022 -                 -                 TBD* -                 

Total Pension Liability Factors:

Service Cost 204,975          -                 -                 204,975          

Interest 2,948,462       -                 -                 2,948,462       

Changes in benefit terms -                 -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

with regard to economic or demographic assumptions (866,981)        866,981          -                 -                 

Current year amortization of experience difference -                 (1,219,257)     (613,450)        (605,807)        

Change in assumptions about future economic or 

demographic factors or other inputs -                 -                 -                 -                 

Current year amortization of change in assumptions -                 -                 (1,695,750)     1,695,750       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,226,159)     -                 -                 -                 

Net change (939,703)        (352,276)        (2,309,200)     4,243,380       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Contributions - Employer 1,625,000       -                 (1,625,000)     -                 

Projected Net Investment Income 5,034,478       -                 -                 (5,034,478)     

Difference between projected and actual earnings on 

Pension Plan investments (18,165,107)   -                 18,165,107     -                 

Current year amortization -                 (2,580,391)     (4,035,081)     1,454,690       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,226,159)     -                 -                 -                 

Administrative Expenses (62,588)          -                 -                 62,588            

Net change (14,794,376)   (2,580,391)     12,505,026     (3,517,200)     

Ending Balance  $ (16,021,885)  $    9,014,288  TBD  $       726,180 

PRELIMINARY COMPONENTS OF PENSION EXPENSE
FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

*  Employer Contributions subsequent to the measurement date made after September 30, 2022 but made on or before 

September 30, 2023 need to be added.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 50



Plan Year 

Ending

Differences Between 

Projected and Actual 

Earnings

Recognition 

Period (Years) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Recognitio 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2022 18,165,107$              5 -$                   3,633,023$    3,633,021$    3,633,021$    3,633,021$    3,633,021$    -$                   -$                   -$                   

2021 (10,288,567)$             5 (2,057,715)$  (2,057,713)$  (2,057,713)$  (2,057,713)$  (2,057,713)$  -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2020 (866,330)$                  5 (173,266)$     (173,266)$     (173,266)$     (173,266)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2019 2,010,291$                5 402,058$       402,058$       402,058$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2018 (1,747,061)$               5 (349,412)$     (349,412)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2017 (2,935,771)$               5 (587,154)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense (2,765,489)$  1,454,690$    1,804,100$    1,402,042$    1,575,308$    3,633,021$    -$                   -$                   -$                   

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - INVESTMENTS

Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense Arising from the Recognition of the of Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pension Plan Investments

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 51



Plan Year 

Ending

Changes of 

Assumptions

Recognition 

Period (Years) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Recognitio 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2021 4,082,572$                4 1,020,643$    1,020,643$    1,020,643$    1,020,643$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2020 370,157$                   5 74,031$         74,031$         74,031$         74,031$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2019 472,090$                   6 78,682$         78,682$         78,682$         78,682$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2016 3,656,761$                7 522,394$       522,394$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2014 736,112$                   8 92,014$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense 1,787,764$    1,695,750$    1,173,356$    1,173,356$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS

Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense Arising from the Recognition of the Effects of Changes of Assumptions

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 52



30

Plan Year 

Ending

Differences Between 

Expected and Actual 

Experience

Recognition 

Period (Years) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Recognitio 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2022 (866,981)$                  4 -$                   (216,746)$     (216,745)$     (216,745)$     (216,745)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2021 (893,533)$                  4 (223,384)$     (223,383)$     (223,383)$     (223,383)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2020 (532,461)$                  5 (106,492)$     (106,492)$     (106,492)$     (106,492)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2019 (1,177,650)$               6 (196,275)$     (196,275)$     (196,275)$     (196,275)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2018 (2,772,290)$               7 (396,041)$     (396,041)$     (396,041)$     (396,041)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2017 3,366,776$                7 480,968$       480,968$       480,968$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2016 (562,243)$                  7 (80,320)$        (80,320)$        -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2015 1,059,852$                8 132,482$       132,482$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense (389,062)$     (605,807)$     (657,968)$     (1,138,936)$  (216,745)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - EXPERIENCE

Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense Arising from the Recognition of the Effects of Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 53



Investment Committee: 
Jerry Noffel, Chairperson 
Stan Retz, CPA 
Billy Specht  

 
 

 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023, NO EARLIER THAN 11:00 A.M. 

EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
I. Review and approval of minutes September 12, 2022. 

 
Motion: To recommend approval of the September 12, 2022 meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 

II. Quarterly Investment Performance Update – Anderson Financial Partners  
 
III. Adjournment 
 



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 

 
The Investment Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District Board of Directors 
met on September 12, 2022 at 1:40 p.m.  The following members were present: 

 
Stan Retz 
Billy Specht 
 

Absent-Excused: 
Jerry Noffel, Chairperson  

  
Others present:  

Darrell Bacon, Director of Financial Planning 
Stephanie Parham, Executive Assistant 
Tim Anderson, Anderson Financial Partners 
John Anderson, Anderson Financial Partners 

      
Call to Order 
 
Mr. Retz called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m.   
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
 
The following motion was made by Mr. Specht, seconded by Mr. Retz, and approved without 
objection.   
 
Action Taken:  Motion to approve the minutes of the May 2, 2022 meeting as presented. 
 
Anderson Financial Partners 

Tim Anderson, Anderson Financial Partners, provided a brief economic update as well as a brief 
update on the Operating Fund performance.  

Mr. Anderson also discussed a line of credit payoff opportunity and addressed questions from the 
committee.  

Adjournment 

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 2:27 p.m. 

 

            
      Stan Retz, Vice Chairperson 



QUALITY COMMITTEE 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D., Chairperson 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.  (ex-officio) 
Billy Specht 
Billie Fitzgerald 
Herman A. Cole, Jr. 
Jerry Noffel 
Stan Retz, CPA  
Maureen Rupe 
Ashok Shah, M.D. 
Aluino Ochoa,  M.D., President/Medical Staff 
Greg Cuculino, M.D. 
Kiran Modi, M.D., Designee 
Francisco Garcia, M.D., Designee 
Christopher Manion, M.D., Designee 
George Mikitarian (non-voting) 

 
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

OPERATING 
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 

QUALITY COMMITTEE 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023   

12:00 P.M. 
FIRST FLOOR, CONFERENCE ROOM 2/3/4/5 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

  
I. Approval of Minutes 

 
Motion to approve the minutes of the December 5, 2022 meeting. 
 

II. Vision Statement   
 

III. My Story 
 

IV. Dashboard 
 

V. Pressure Injury Prevention (PIP) 
 

VI. Other 
 
VII. Executive Session (if necessary) 

 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 

NOTE:  IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE QUALITY COMMITTEE WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT 
THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 
PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING SHOULD CONTACT THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO 
THE MEETING.  FOR INFORMATION CALL (321) 268-6110. THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS OF 
MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE.  TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH DISCUSSION, A JOINT PUBLIC MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE AND NORTH 
BREVARD MEDICAL SUUPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED. 



 
 

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
QUALITY COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Quality Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District 
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on December 5, 2022 in Conference Room 2/3/4/5, 
First Floor.  The following members were present. 

 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D., Chairperson 
Maureen Rupe  
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.  
Stan Retz, CPA  
Billy Specht  
Ashok Shah, M.D.  
Christopher Manion, M.D. 
Biju Mathews, M.D., President/Medical Staff (12:15 p.m.) 
Gregory Cuculino M.D. 
George Mikitarian (non-voting)  
 
Members absent:  
Billie Fitzgerald (excused) 
Herman A. Cole, Jr. (excused) 
Jerry Noffel (excused) 
Kiran Modi, M.D. (excused) 
Francisco Garcia, M.D. (excused) 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Dr. Galfo called the meeting to order at 12:06 p.m.   
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Specht 
and approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).  Dr. Mathews was not present at the time the vote 
was taken. 
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOVED TO APPROVE THE AUGUST 1, 2022 AND OCTOBER 3, 
2022 MINUTES OF THE QUALITY COMMITTEE, AS PRESENTED. 
 
 
VISION STATEMENT 
 
Mr. Loftin summarized the committee’s vision statement. 
 
MY STORY 
 
Mr. Loftin shared the story of Randy and the healing experience provided to him during his stay 
at Parrish Medical Center  



QUALITY COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 
 
QUALITY DASHBOARD REVIEW 
 
Mr. Loftin reviewed the Quality Dashboard discussing each indicator score as it relates to 
clinical quality and cost. Copies of the Power Point slides presented are appended to the file copy 
of these minutes.   
 
CMS QUALITY PUBLIC REPORTING 
 
Mr. Loftin reviewed the public reporting results for CMS patient safety indicators.  
 
OTHER 
 
There was no other business brought before the committee. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the Quality Committee meeting adjourned at 12:35 
p.m.  
 
 
 
       Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
       Chairperson 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
Herman A. Cole, Jr. Chairperson 
Stan Retz, CPA, Vice Chairperson 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., (ex-officio) 
Jerry Noffel 
Billie Fitzgerald 
Billy Specht 
Maureen Rupe 
Ashok Shah, M.D. 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
Christopher Manion, M.D. 
Aluino Ochoa, M.D., President/Medical Staff 
George Mikitarian, President/CEO (non-voting) 
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  
 NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT OPERATING 
 PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
FIRST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOMS 2/3/4/5 

(IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING QUALITY COMMITTEE) 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

I. Approval of minutes. 
 

Motion: To recommend approval of the December 5, 2022 meeting. 
 

II. Public Comments 
 

III. Financial Review – Mr. Eljaiek  
 

IV. Pension Actuarial Report as of October 1, 2022 
 
Motion: To recommend the Board of Directors approve the Pension Plan Actuarial 
Valuation as of October 1, 2022. 
 

V. Capital Purchase –Hemochron Signature Elite Instrument – Mr. Loftin 
 
Motion: To recommend the Board of Directors approve the purchase of two (2) 
Hemochron Signature Elite instruments for the new EP Cardiology Program, at a total 
cost of $27,525. 
 

VI. Capital Budget Request – Endoscope/Colonoscope Instrumentation and Equipment Lease 
Buyout – Mr. Loftin 
 
Motion: To recommend to the Board of Directors to approve the buyout of the 
endoscope and colonoscope instrumentation and equipment at Parrish Medical Center 
at fair market value (FMV), at a total cost not to exceed the amount of $187,620. 
 

VII. Disposal 
 
 Motion: To recommend to the Board of Directors to declare the equipment listed in the     
requests for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property Forms as surplus and obsolete 
and dispose of same in accordance with FS274.05 and FS274.96. 



 
VIII. Executive Session (if necessary) 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE FINANCE COMMITTEE WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS 
MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 
PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING SHOULD CONTACT THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES, AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.  FOR 
INFORMATION CALL (321) 268-6110. 
 
THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, 
INC. MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS FINANCE COMMITTEE.  TO THAT EXTENT OF SUCH DISCUSSIONS, A JOINT PUBLIC MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINANCE COMMITTEE AND THE NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED. 



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
A regular meeting of the Finance Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District 
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on December 5, 2022 in Conference Room 2/3/4/5, 
First Floor.  The following members, representing a quorum, were present: 
 

Stan Retz, Vice Chairperson  
Robert Jordan, Jr., C.M.  
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
Billy Specht 
Maureen Rupe  
Ashok Shah, M.D.  
Biju Mathews, M.D.  
Christopher Manion, M.D.  
George Mikitarian (non-voting) 
 

Member(s) Absent: 
Jerry Noffel (excused) 
Herman A. Cole, Jr., Chairperson (excused) 
Billie Fitzgerald (excused) 
 

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file copy 
of these minutes. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mr. Retz called the meeting to order at 12:37 p.m. 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan seconded by Dr. Galfo and 
approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).  
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOVED THAT THE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS APPROVE THE OCTOBER 3, 2022 MEETING MINUTES OF THE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE, AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
Ms. Penick summarized the October financial statements of the North Brevard County Hospital 
District and the year to date financial performance of the Health System.  
 
 
 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 
Pension renewal for Stan Retz 
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Specht 
and approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).   
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APPROVE THE RENEWAL OF MEMBERSHIP FOR STAN RETZ FOR A THREE-
YEAR TERM FROM JANUARY 1, 2023 TO DECEMBER 31, 2025. 
 
TD BANK SIGNER’S RESOLUTION 
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Dr. Galfo, seconded by Mr. Jordan 
and approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).   
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APPROVE THE SIGNER’S RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT FOR TD BANK AND 
DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED SIGNERS AS PRESENTED.  
 
FY23 CAPITAL BUDGET REQUEST | MRI LEASE BUYOUT 
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Dr. Galfo, seconded by Mr. Jordan 
and approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).   
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APPROVE THE BUYOUT OF THE MRI LEASE AT TITUS LANDING AT FAIR 
MARKET VALUE (FMV), AT A TOTAL COST NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF 
$239,181.00. 
 
DISPOSALS  
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Dr. Galfo, seconded by Mr. Specht 
and approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).   
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO 
DECLARE THE EQUIPMENT LISTED IN THE REQUEST FOR DISPOSAL OF 
OBSOLETE OR SURPLUS PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND OBSOLETE AND 
DISPOSE OF SAME IN ACCORDANCE WITH FS274.05 AND FS274.96. 
 
OTHER 
 
Cigna Update 
 
Mr. McAlpine summarized the letter sent by Cigna to community members stating that effective 
December 16, 2022, PMC and our employed physicians will be considered out of Cigna’s 
network due to non-renewal of the contract. 
 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 3 
 
 
 
Mr. McAlpine noted that he would like the committee to be aware that back on August 1, 2019 
PMC discovered that Cigna unilaterally stopped paying PMC under the Cigna/PMC contract for 
IV outpatient services. The issue was then addressed with several different people within Cigna; 
Vice President, Network Management North Florida Diane Wilkosz, Assistant Vice President 
Network Management Ron Bechor, Institutional Network Administrator Phil Osczepinski and 
Provider Contract Negotiator Lee Shupsky, all to no avail. 
 
This issue has continued and PMC is now owed a total of $1,376,760.00 – Cigna admits this 
amount is owed to PMC.  Cigna continues to tell PMC that Cigna will pay part of the amount 
and Cigna believes PMC will accept a lesser amount because PMC does not want to jeopardize 
PMC’s relationship with Brevard Public School or with Brevard County who are both insured 
with Cigna.  PMC continues to negotiate this issue in addition to negotiating a new physician 
agreement, but the failure of Cigna to pay PMC has remained outstanding.  
 
Cigna has sent PMC notes indicating that they know that they are obligated to pay $1.3 million. 
Cigna continues to say Cigna will pay part of it back and have another part repaid through 
another mechanism.  PMC continues to ask that Cigna simply pay the entire amount to PMC.  
Cigna has sent PMC correspondence stating that a complete payment will disrupt the market and 
cause hardship to accounts. 
  
Trade journals indicate that Cigna has achieved record numbers of subscribers this year and 
record profits this year. Once again, a multibillion-dollar company making hundreds of millions 
in profit, yet $1.3 million that Cigna owes to PMC is still outstanding. 
 
Two years ago, PMC began working with Brevard Public Schools and the teacher’s union on a 
separate account, and the Silver Network was created. Gold member level is inclusive of all 
hospitals, Silver level is PMC only.  In the first year of the newly structured Silver Network, the 
Gold Member level came in at $12 million over budget, while the Silver level came in at $2 
million under budget.  PMC has reminded Cigna of these numbers that Cigna generated with 
Cigna’s own data.  
 
Mr. Mikitarian noted that in the last quarter Cigna recorded $179 billion in net revenues.  
Cigna’s cash is up 700% and net is up 67%.  Mr. Mikitarian explained that people in the 
insurance business will tell you that insurance companies make most of their money not by the 
fees that members pay them, but by the money they withhold from hospitals and how may days 
they can withhold the money while earning interest on it.  In PMC’s case, they are doing both; 
they are holding our money and not paying us.    
 
PMC has the 3rd lowest healthcare cost in the state. By sending subscribers to other hospitals, 
subscribers will be spending 200-300% more.  
 
Cigna is using tactics from corporate office. PMC has no plans to cave in. PMC works every day 
to keep healthcare cost down. The latest state report says PMC is 30-50% less expensive on 
everything compared to any other hospitals in Brevard County.  This is how a big insurance 
company wants to treat us, a big insurance company that made more in the last quarter than most 
countries do in the world.  Cigna can try whatever tactics it wants, but PMC is not budging. 
 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 4 
 
 
 
PMC did not budge the last time this same type of practice happened with Cigna or last time it 
happened with Blue Cross and they both came back and paid more than PMC initially asked for. 
They realized that paying PMC was less expensive then subscribers going to other hospitals.  
 
Mr. Mikitarian added that PMC will send out a press release on social media and on PMC’s 
webpage explaining PMC’s position. In addition, there are calls scheduled this week with the 
Brevard County Manager and the School Superintendent to explain and share our position.  
 
Dr. Galfo inquired about legal recourse for Cigna’s breach of contract by lack of payment. Mr. 
Mikitarian explained that would be a civil matter. The unions of the County and School Board 
should be suing their employers for messing up their health insurance. Now the subscriber’s 
premiums will go up which is more money out of their paychecks. Not to mention, going to other 
hospitals will cost them exponentially more.  
 
Mr. Mikitarian further explained that the School Board and Brevard County do not have 
sufficient insurance plans.  When Brevard County enters into a contract, it’s supposed to be 
equal for everyone, which means there needs to be healthcare providers within 10 miles of every 
employee of the School Board and of Brevard County. Without PMC included in the insurance 
plan, there is insufficient hospital coverage to reach every subscriber/employee within 10 miles. 
The School Board and Brevard County will cause the employees to pay more for insurance, and 
there will be insufficient hospital coverage under Cigna for the employees.    
 
The County and School Board are now out of compliance, Cigna is out of compliance, pressure 
is now on employees to put pressure on their employers because their healthcare costs are going 
up.  PMC has never caved and has always won. 
 
Dr. Mathews inquired about interest on the money owed by Cigna to PMC. Mr. Mikitarian noted 
it is $1.6 million after interest. 
 
Mr. Mikitarian explained that unless PMC sticks up for itself, nobody else will. This is what big 
entities try to do to entities PMC’s size.   
 
It is important to note there is no impact on use of emergency services; those will continue to be 
covered as in the past. PMC charges Cigna back the rack rate and Cigna will continue to lose 
money. 
 
Mr. Lewis added that the team has been working on this issue since the beginning. Cigna 
admitted they owe the money.  PMC did agree to a two-year payback initially, however, they are 
now insisting they cannot do better than three years with no interest, and this is not acceptable to 
PMC.  
 
Mr. Mikitarian added that PMC is holding back salaries, not doing equity adjustments, asked all 
the leaders to donate 40 hours of vacation time for PMC to meet bond covenants, and Cigna is 
holding back money rightfully owed to PMC.   
 
 
 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 5 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, the Finance Committee meeting adjourned at 1:15 
p.m.  
 
 
 

                                       Stan Retz 
                                                            Vice Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER, INC. 
PENSION PLAN AND TRUST FUND AGREEMENT 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2022 

CONTRIBUTIONS APPLICABLE TO THE     
PLAN/FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

GASB 67/68 DISCLOSURE INFORMATION 
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 



13420 Parker Commons Blvd., Suite 104 Fort Myers, FL 33912 ꞏ (239) 433-5500 ꞏ Fax (239) 481-0634 ꞏ www.foster-foster.com 

February 1, 2023

Board of Trustees 
Parrish Medical Center, Inc. 
Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement 

Re:  Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement 

Dear Board: 

We are pleased to present to the Board this report of the annual actuarial valuation of the Parrish Medical 

Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement.  Included are the related results for GASB 

Statements No. 67 and No. 68.  The funding valuation was performed to determine whether the assets and 

contributions are sufficient to provide the prescribed benefits and to develop the appropriate funding 

requirements for the applicable plan year.  The calculation of the liability for GASB results was 

performed for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68.  Use of 

the results for other purposes may not be applicable and may produce significantly different results. 

The valuations have been conducted in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and 

practices, including the applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice as issued by the Actuarial Standards 

Board, and reflect laws and regulations issued to date pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 112, Florida 

Statutes, as well as applicable federal laws and regulations.  In our opinion, the assumptions used in the 

valuations, as adopted by the Board of Trustees, represent reasonable expectations of anticipated plan 

experience.   

The funding percentages and unfunded accrued liability as measured based on the actuarial value of assets 

will differ from similar measures based on the market value of assets. These measures, as provided, are 

appropriate for determining the adequacy of future contributions, but may not be appropriate for the 

purpose of settling a portion or all of its liabilities. Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly 

from the current measurements presented in this report for a variety of reasons including: changes in 

applicable laws, changes in plan provisions, changes in assumptions, or plan experience differing from 

expectations.  Due to the limited scope of the valuations, we did not perform an analysis of the potential 

range of such future measurements.  



  

In conducting the valuations, we have relied on personnel, plan design, and asset information supplied by 

the Parrish Medical Center, Inc., financial reports prepared by the custodian bank, and the actuarial 

assumptions and methods described in the Actuarial Assumptions section of this report.  While we cannot 

verify the accuracy of all this information, the supplied information was reviewed for consistency and 

reasonableness.  As a result of this review, we have no reason to doubt the substantial accuracy of the 

information and believe that it has produced appropriate results.  This information, along with any 

adjustments or modifications, is summarized in various sections of this report. 

 

Additionally, we used third-party software to model (calculate) the underlying liabilities and costs. These 

results are reviewed in the aggregate and for individual sample lives. The output from the software is 

either used directly or input into internally developed models that apply the funding and accounting rules 

to generate the results. All internally developed models are reviewed as part of the valuation process. As a 

result of this review, we believe that the models have produced reasonable results. We do not believe 

there are any material inconsistencies among assumptions or unreasonable output produced due to the 

aggregation of assumptions. 

 

The total pension liability, net pension liability, and certain sensitivity information shown in this report 

are based on an actuarial valuation performed as of October 1, 2021. The total pension liability was 

rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 using 

generally accepted actuarial principles.   It is our opinion that the assumptions used for this purpose are 

internally consistent, reasonable, and comply with the requirements under GASB No. 67 and No. 68. 

  

The undersigned are familiar with the immediate and long-term aspects of pension valuations, and meet 

the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries necessary to render the actuarial 

opinions contained herein.  All of the sections of this report are considered an integral part of the actuarial 

opinions. 

 

To our knowledge, no associate of Foster & Foster, Inc. working on valuations of the program has any 

direct financial interest or indirect material interest in the Parrish Medical Center, Inc., nor does anyone at 

Foster & Foster, Inc. act as a member of the Board of Trustees of the Pension Plan and Trust Fund 

Agreement.  Thus, there is no relationship existing that might affect our capacity to prepare and certify 

this actuarial report. 

 



  

If there are any questions, concerns, or comments about any of the items contained in this report, please 

contact us at 239-433-5500. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Foster & Foster, Inc. 

 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 

Douglas H. Lozen, EA, MAAA 
Enrolled Actuary #20-7778 
 

 
 
By: _______________________________ 

Sara E. Carlson, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Enrolled Actuary #20-8546 

Enclosures 
 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Section Title Page 
 
  I Introduction  
 

a. Summary of Report 6 
 
b. Changes Since Prior Valuation 7 

 
c. Comparative Summary of Principal  
 Valuation Results 8 

 
 
 II Valuation Information 
 

a. History of Funding Progress 14 
 

b. Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 15 
 
c. Glossary  18 

 
d. Discussion of Risk 19 

 
 
III Trust Fund 22 
 
 
IV Member Statistics 
 

a. Statistical Data 28 
 
b. Age and Service Distribution 29 
 
c. Valuation Participant Reconciliation 30 

 
 
  V Summary of Current Plan 31 
 
 
 VI Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 
 No. 67 and No. 68 Disclosure Information 33 
          

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 5



SUMMARY OF REPORT 

The regular annual actuarial valuation of the Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund 

Agreement, performed as of October 1, 2022, has been completed and the results are presented in this 

Report.  The contribution amounts set forth herein are applicable to the plan/fiscal year ending September 

30, 2024. 

The contribution requirements, compared with those set forth in the October 1, 2021 actuarial valuation 

report, are as follows: 

Valuation Date 10/1/2022 10/1/2021 
Applicable to Fiscal Year Ending 9/30/2024 9/30/2023 

Minimum Required Contribution $0 $0 

Experience since the prior valuation has been less favorable than expected, relative to the Plan’s actuarial 

assumptions. The primary sources of unfavorable experience included a 5.49 % investment return (net of 

fees, Actuarial Asset Basis) that fell short of the 6.85% assumption and unfavorable retirement and 

termination experience.  These losses were partially offset by a gain due to actual benefits that were less 

than expected. 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 6



CHANGES SINCE PRIOR VALUATION 

Plan Changes 

There have been no changes in benefits since the prior valuation. 

Actuarial Assumption/Method Changes 

The PBGC lump sum interest rate (used for valuation of Vested Accrued Benefits as of January 9, 2006) 
changed from 0.87% for the first five years, 2.74% for the next 15 years and 3.16% thereafter to 5.10%, 
5.83% and 5.68%, respectively.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 7



COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL VALUATION RESULTS  

10/1/2022 10/1/2021
A. Participant Data

    Actives 316 349
    Service Retirees 116 106
    Beneficiaries 0 0
    Disability Retirees 6 6
    Terminated Vested 236 233

    Total 674 694

    Payroll Under Assumed Ret. Age N/A N/A

    Annual Rate of Payments to:
       Service Retirees 2,009,014 1,788,888
       Beneficiaries 0 0
       Disability Retirees 89,186 90,509
       Terminated Vested 1,131,940 1,075,553

B. Assets

    Actuarial Value (AVA) 67,947,994 66,031,950
    Market Value (MVA) 59,533,522                               74,327,898

C. Liabilities

    Present Value of Benefits
      Actives
           Retirement Benefits 13,621,004 15,224,823
           Disability Benefits 92,738 114,048
           Death Benefits 150,615 174,571
           Vested Benefits 1,361,350 1,928,404
      Service Retirees 20,756,236 18,432,009
      Beneficiaries 0 0
      Disability Retirees 796,525 792,587
      Terminated Vested 7,431,474 7,867,655
      PV of Future Non-Invest. Exp. 509,223 534,689

      Total 44,719,165 45,068,786

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 8



C. Liabilities - (Continued) 10/1/2022 10/1/2021

    Total Normal Cost 0 0

    Present Value of Future 
       Normal Costs (EAN) 376,847 516,409

         Accrued Liability (Retirement) 13,450,240 15,009,241
         Accrued Liability (Disability) 88,287 108,279
         Accrued Liability (Death) 144,547 166,994
         Accrued Liability (Vesting) 1,165,786 1,640,923
         Accrued Liability (Inactives)  28,984,235 27,092,251
         PV of Future Non-Invest. Exp. 509,223 534,689

    Total Actuarial Accrued Liability (EAN AL) 44,342,318 44,552,377

    Total Actuarial Accrued  
       Liability (Aggregate) 67,947,994 66,031,950

    Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
       Liability (UAAL) 0 0

    Funded Ratio (AVA / EAN AL) 153.2% 148.2%

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 9



D. Actuarial Present Value of
     Accrued Benefits 10/1/2022 10/1/2021

    Vested Accrued Benefits
       Inactives 28,984,235 27,092,251
       Actives 15,340,953 15,949,161
       Member Contributions 0 0

       Total 44,325,188 43,041,412

    Non-vested Accrued Benefits 0 1,492,686

    Total Present Value 
       Accrued Benefits (PVAB) 44,325,188 44,534,098

    Funded Ratio (MVA / PVAB) 134.3% 166.9%

    Increase (Decrease) in Present Value of
    Accrued Benefits Attributable to:
      Plan Amendments 0
      Assumption Changes 0
      Plan Experience 77,159
      Benefits Paid (3,226,159)
      Interest 2,940,090
      Other 0

      Total (208,910)

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 10



Valuation Date 10/1/2022 10/1/2021
Applicable to Fiscal Year Ending 9/30/2024 9/30/2023

E. Pension Cost

    Normal Cost  $0 $0

    Administrative Expenses  0 0

    Payment Required to Amortize
    Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
    Liability
    (as of 10/1/2022)  0 0

    Minimum Required Contribution 0 0

F. Past Contributions

    Plan Years Ending: 9/30/2022

    Minimum Required Contribution 0

    Actual Contributions Made:

Sponsor 1,625,000                  

G. Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss N/A

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 11



H. Schedule Illustrating the Amortization of the Total Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as of:

Projected Unfunded
Year Actuarial Accrued Liability 

I. 5 Year Comparison of Investment Return on Market Value and Actuarial Value

Market Value Actuarial Value Assumed

Year Ended 9/30/2022 -17.62% 5.49% 6.85%
Year Ended 9/30/2021 23.72% 11.75% 7.10%
Year Ended 9/30/2020 8.75% 9.86% 7.35%
Year Ended 9/30/2019 4.31% 7.97% 7.60%
Year Ended 9/30/2018 10.51% 8.57% 7.60%

N/A – Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 12



STATEMENT BY ENROLLED ACTUARY 

This actuarial valuation was prepared and completed by me or under my direct supervision, and I 

acknowledge responsibility for the results.  To the best of my knowledge, the results are complete and 

accurate, and in my opinion, the techniques and assumptions used are reasonable and meet the 

requirements and intent of Part VII, Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  There is no benefit or expense to be 

provided by the plan and/or paid from the plan's assets for which liabilities or current costs have not been 

established or otherwise taken into account in the valuation.  All known events or trends which may 

require a material increase in plan costs or required contribution rates have been taken into account in the 

valuation. 

________________________ 

Douglas H. Lozen, EA, MAAA 

Enrolled Actuary #20-7778 

Please let us know when the report is approved by the Board and unless otherwise directed we will 

provide a copy of the report to the following office to comply with Chapter 112 Florida Statutes: 

Mr. Keith Brinkman 

Bureau of Local 

Retirement Systems 

Post Office Box 9000 

Tallahassee, FL  32315-9000 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 13



HISTORY OF FUNDING PROGRESS

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

140.00%

160.00%

180.00%

2022202120202019201820172016201520142013

History of Funding Progress

Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Assets / EAN Actuarial Accrued Liability)

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 14



ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS 

Mortality Rate           Healthy Active Lives: 

Female: PubG.H-2010 for Employees.   
Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Employees, set back one year.   

Healthy Retiree Lives: 

Female:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees.   
Male:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median)  for Healthy 
Retirees, set back one year. 

Beneficiary Lives: 

Female:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median)  for Healthy 
Retirees.   
Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees, set back one 
year.   

Disabled Lives: 

PubG.H-2010 for Disabled Retirees, set forward three 
years. 

All rates are projected generationally with Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP-2018.  We feel this assumption 
sufficiently accommodates future mortality 
improvements. 

The previously described mortality assumption rates 
were mandated by Chapter 2015-157, Laws of Florida.  
This law mandates the use of the assumptions used in 
either of the two most recent valuations of the Florida 
Retirement System (FRS).  The above rates are those 
outlined in Milliman’s July 1, 2021 FRS valuation report 
for non-special-risk employees, with appropriate 
adjustments made based on plan demographics.   

Interest Rate  6.85% per year compounded annually, net of investment 
related expenses.  This is supported by the target asset 
allocation of the trust and the expected long-term return 
by asset class.   

Lump Sum Assumptions The minimum guaranteed lump sum (the frozen vested 
accrued benefit as of January 9, 2006) is based on the 
Plan-specific 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table for 
Males and an assumed PBGC discount rate as of each 
October 1 of the valuation year.  For the October 1, 2022 
valuation, we utilized segment rates equal to 5.10% for 
the first five years, 5.83% for the next 15 years and 
5.68% thereafter.  Effective 2021, the PBGC uses IRS 
417(e)(3) interest rates for valuing lump sums.   

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 15



The base lump sum is based on 8.00% per annum, 
compounded annually, and the mortality table prescribed 
by the Secretary of the Treasury in accordance with 
Section 417(e)(3)(A)(ii)(I) of the Internal Revenue Code, 
as applicable for the year in which the valuation is 
performed.  This is in accordance with the Plan’s 
definition of Actuarial Equivalence. 

Lump Sum Elections 60% of Members separating employment immediately 
eligible for retirement are assumed to take a lump sum.  
75% of Members separating employment not 
immediately eligible to commence a monthly benefit are 
assumed to take a lump sum.  These rates were adopted 
by the Board as a result of an Actuarial Experience 
Study dated September 10, 2021. 

Salary Increases Not Applicable. Benefits are frozen as of October 1, 
2016. 

Inflation 2.8% per year. 

Payroll Growth None necessary for amortization purposes under 
Aggregate Cost Method. 

Administrative Expenses Liability for future non-investment related expenses is 
the present value of the future anticipated expenses over 
15 years, based on the average of actual expenses 
incurred in the prior two fiscal years ($51,831).  

Normal Retirement 

Number of Years  
after first Eligible 

Current 
Retirement 

Rates ¹ 
0 – 3 25% 
4 – 9 20% 
10+ 10%

¹ 100% at Age 70, regardless of years after first eligibility. 

These rates were adopted by the Board as a result of an 
Actuarial Experience Study dated September 10, 2021. 

Early Retirement            Commencing at eligibility for Early Retirement (Age 55 
with 20 years of Credited Service), Members are 
assumed to retire with an immediate benefit at the rate of 
10% per year.  This assumption was adopted by the 
Board as the result of an Actuarial Experience Study 
dated September 10, 2021.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 16



Termination Rates 
Age Service Termination Rates 
<60 <10 15%

10 – 19 10%
20 – 29 6%

30+ 0%
60 - 64 <30 15% 

30+ 0%
65+ All Svc 0% 

These rates were adopted by the Board as a result of an 
Actuarial Experience Study dated September 10, 2021.    

Disability Rates 

Age 
 Disability 

Rates 
20 0.007%
25 0.009
30 0.011
35 0.014
40 0.019
45 0.030
50 0.051
55 0.096
60 0.166
65 ----

The sample disability rates were adopted by the Board as 
a result of an Actuarial Experience Study dated 
September 10, 2021. 

Post Retirement COLA             Not applicable. 

Funding Method Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method. 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 17



GLOSSARY 

Actuarial Value of Assets is the asset value used in the valuation to determine contribution requirements.  

It represents the plan’s Market Value of Assets (see below), with adjustments according to the plan’s 

Actuarial Asset Method.  These adjustments produce a “smoothed” value that is likely to be less volatile 

from year to year than the Market Value of Assets. 

Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method (Level Dollar) is the method used to determine required contributions 

under the Plan.  The use of this method involves the systematic funding of the Normal Cost. 

Market Value of Assets is the fair market value of plan assets as of the valuation date.  This amount 

may be adjusted to produce an Actuarial Value of Assets for plan funding purposes. 

Normal (Current Year's) Cost Rate is the current year’s cost for benefits yet to be funded and is 

determined in the aggregate as the ratio of (a) and (b) as follows:  

(a) The present value of benefits for all Plan participants, less the actuarial value of assets.

(a) The total expected future working lifetime of the active participants, determined as of the

valuation date.

The Normal Cost dollar requirement is the ratio of (a) and (b), multiplied by the Total Active 

Participants as of the valuation date. 

Present Value of Benefits is the single sum value on the valuation date of all future benefits to be paid 

to current plan participants. 

Total Required Contribution is equal to the Normal Cost plus an adjustment for interest according to the 

timing of sponsor contributions during the year. 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 18



DISCUSSION OF RISK 

ASOP No. 51, Assessment and Disclosure of Risk Associated with Measuring Pension Obligations and 
Determining Pension Plan Contributions, states that the actuary should identify risks that, in the actuary’s 
professional judgment, may reasonably be anticipated to significantly affect the plan’s future financial 
condition.    

Throughout this report, actuarial results are determined using various actuarial assumptions.  These 
results are based on the premise that all future plan experience will align with the plan’s actuarial 
assumptions; however, there is no guarantee that actual plan experience will align with the plan’s 
assumptions.  It is possible that actual plan experience will differ from anticipated experience in an 
unfavorable manner that will negatively impact the plan’s funded position.    

Below are examples of ways in which plan experience can deviate from assumptions and the potential 
impact of that deviation.  The aggregate gain or loss resulting from the current-year experience differing 
from the assumptions is amortized over the average future working lifetime of the plan’s active 
membership.  When assumptions are selected that adequately reflect plan experience, gains and losses 
typically offset one another in the long term, resulting in a relatively low impact on the plan’s 
contribution requirement associated with plan experience.   When assumptions are too optimistic, the 
plan’s contribution requirements could potentially grow to an unmanageable level.  

 Investment Return: When the rate of return on the Actuarial Value of Assets falls short of the
assumption, this produces a loss representing assumed investment earnings that were not
realized.  Further, it is unlikely that the plan will experience a scenario that matches the assumed
return in each year as capital markets can be volatile from year to year.  Therefore, contribution
amounts can vary in the future.

 Demographic Assumptions: Actuarial results take into account various potential events that could
happen to a plan participant, such as retirement, termination, disability, and death.  Each of these
potential events is assigned a liability based on the likelihood of the event and the financial
consequence of the event for the plan.  Accordingly, actuarial liabilities reflect a blend of
financial consequences associated with various possible outcomes (such as retirement at one of
various possible ages).  Once the outcome is known (e.g. the participant retires) the liability is
adjusted to reflect the known outcome.  This adjustment produces a gain or loss depending on
whether the outcome was more or less favorable than other outcomes that could have occurred.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 19



Impact of Plan Maturity on Risk 

For newer pension plans, most of the participants and associated liabilities are related to active members 
who have not yet reached retirement age.  As pension plans continue in operation and active members 
reach retirement ages, liabilities begin to shift from being primarily related to active members to being 
shared amongst active and retired members.  Plan maturity is a measure of the extent to which this shift 
has occurred. It is important to understand that plan maturity can have an impact on risk tolerance and the 
overall risk characteristics of the plan. For example, closed plans with a large amount of retired liability 
do not have as long of a time horizon to recover from losses (such as losses on investments due to lower 
than expected investment returns) as plans where the majority of the liability is attributable to active 
members.  For this reason, less tolerance for investment risk may be warranted for highly mature closed 
plans with a substantial inactive liability.  Similarly, mature closed plans paying substantial retirement 
benefits resulting in a small positive or net negative cash flow can be more sensitive to near term 
investment volatility, particularly if the size of the fund is shrinking, which can result in less assets being 
available for investment in the market.  

To assist with determining the maturity of the plan, we have provided some relevant metrics in the table  
following titled “Plan Maturity Measures and Other Risk Metrics”.  Highlights of this information are  
discussed below:   

• The Support Ratio, determined as the ratio of active to inactive members, has decreased from 568.6% 
on October 1, 2012 to 88.3% on October 1, 2022, indicating that the plan has been maturing during 
the period.

• The Accrued Liability Ratio, determined as the ratio of the Inactive Accrued Liability, which is the 
liability associated with members who are no longer employed but are due a benefit from the plan, to 
the Total Accrued Liability, is 65.4%.  With a plan of this maturity, losses due to lower than expected 
investment returns or demographic factors may result in larger increases in contribution requirements 
than would be needed for a less mature plan.  Please note Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, requires that 
the plan sponsor contributes the minimum required contribution; thus, there is minimal solvency risk 
to the plan.

• The Funded Ratio, determined as the ratio of the Actuarial Value of Assets to the Total Accrued 
Liability, has increased from 106.5% on October 1, 2012 to 153.2% on October 1, 2022.

• The Net Cash Flow Ratio, determined as the ratio of the Net Cash Flow (contributions minus benefit 
payments and administrative expenses) to the Market Value of Assets, decreased from -0.1% on 
October 1, 2012 to -2.8% on October 1, 2022. The current Net Cash Flow Ratio of -2.8% indicates 
that contributions are not currently covering the plan's benefit payments and administrative expenses. 

It is important to note that the actuary has identified the risks in this section as the most significant risks 
based on the characteristics of the plan and the nature of the project, however, it is not an exhaustive list 
of potential risks that could be considered.  Additional advanced modeling, as well as the identification of 
additional risks, can be provided at the request of the audience addressed on page 2 of this report.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 20



PLAN MATURITY MEASURES AND OTHER RISK METRICS

10/1/2022 10/1/2021 10/1/2017 10/1/2012

Support Ratio

316 349 650 870
358 345 266 153

88.3% 101.2% 244.4% 568.6%

Total Actives
Total Inactives 
Actives / Inactives 

Accrued Liability (AL) Ratio

28,984,235 27,092,251 17,398,233 7,918,744
44,342,318 44,552,377 41,679,981 43,866,575

65.4% 60.8% 41.7% 18.1%

67,947,994 66,031,950 58,813,949 46,730,757
44,342,318 44,552,377 41,679,981 43,866,575

153.2% 148.2% 141.1% 106.5%

(1,663,747) (3,388,524) (5,559,092) (27,387)
59,533,522 74,327,898 60,740,810 48,734,856

Inactive Accrued Liability
Total Accrued Liability (EAN) 
Inactive AL / Total AL

Funded Ratio

Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) 
Total Accrued Liability (EAN) 
AVA / Total Accrued Liability (EAN)

Net Cash Flow Ratio

Net Cash Flow ¹
Market Value of Assets (MVA) 
Ratio -2.8% -4.6% -9.2% -0.1%

¹ Determined as total contributions minus benefit payments and administrative expenses.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 21



ASSETS COST VALUE MARKET VALUE
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
  Short Term Investments 2,034,535.11 2,034,535.11
  Money Market 81,566.28 81,566.28
  Cash 36,315.32 36,315.32

Total Cash and Equivalents 2,152,416.71 2,152,416.71

Receivables:
  Investment Income 169,196.18 169,196.18

Total Receivable 169,196.18 169,196.18

Investments:
  Fixed Income 24,733,465.87 21,554,924.62
  Equities 22,477,841.48 21,031,730.08
  Miscellaneous 3,716,264.81 4,720,930.90
  Stocks 5,911,923.39 7,626,784.21
  Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds:
    Real Estate 1,519,681.82 2,410,720.42

Total Investments 58,359,177.37 57,345,090.23

Total Assets 60,680,790.26 59,666,703.12

LIABILITIES 
Payables:
  Lump Sum Distributions 130,181.57 130,181.57
  Benefit Payments 2,999.76 2,999.76

Total Liabilities 133,181.33 133,181.33

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS 60,547,608.93 59,533,521.79

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 22



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Market Value Basis

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
 Employer 1,625,000.00

Total Contributions 1,625,000.00

Investment Income:
 Net Realized Gain (Loss)
 Unrealized Gain (Loss)

(436,308.38) 
(14,064,567.72)

 Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments (14,500,876.10)
 Interest & Dividends 1,753,047.01
 Less Investment Expense¹ (382,799.97)

Net Investment Income (13,130,629.06)

Total Additions (11,505,629.06)

DEDUCTIONS
Distributions to Members:
 Benefit Payments 2,029,993.02
 Lump Sum Distributions 1,196,165.76

Total Distributions 3,226,158.78

Administrative Expense 62,588.02

Total Deductions 3,288,746.80

Net Increase in Net Position (14,794,375.86)

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS
Beginning of the Year 74,327,897.65

End of the Year 59,533,521.79

¹Investment related expenses include investment advisory, custodial and performance monitoring fees.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 23



Plan Year
Ending Gain/(Loss) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

09/30/2018 1,747,061 0 0 0 0 0
09/30/2019 (2,010,290) (402,058) 0 0 0 0
09/30/2020 866,327 346,532 173,267 0 0 0
09/30/2021 10,288,568 6,173,140 4,115,426 2,057,712 0 0
09/30/2022 (18,165,107) (14,532,086) (10,899,065) (7,266,044) (3,633,023) 0

Total (8,414,472) (6,610,372) (5,208,332) (3,633,023) 0

Market Value of Assets, 09/30/2021 74,327,898
Contributions Less Benefit Payments & Admin Expenses (1,663,747)
Expected Investment Earnings* 5,034,478
Actual Net Investment Earnings (13,130,629)
2022 Actuarial Investment Gain/(Loss) (18,165,107)

*Expected Investment Earnings = 0.0685 * [74,327,898 + 0.5 * (1,663,747)]

(1) Market Value of Assets, 09/30/2022 59,533,522
(2) Gain/(Loss) Not Yet Recognized (8,414,472)
(3) Actuarial Value of Assets, 09/30/2022, (1) - (2) 67,947,994

(A) 09/30/2021 Actuarial Assets: 66,031,950

(I) Net Investment Income:
1. Interest and Dividends 1,753,047
2. Realized Gain (Loss) (436,308)
3. Unrealized Gain (Loss) (14,064,568)
4. Change in Actuarial Value 16,710,420
5. Investment Expenses (382,800)

Total 3,579,791

(B) 09/30/2022 Actuarial Assets: 67,947,994

Actuarial Assets Rate of Return = 2I/(A+B-I): 5.49%
Market Value of Assets Rate of Return: -17.62%

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) due to Investment Return (Actuarial Asset Basis) (886,414)

     10/01/2022 Limited Actuarial Assets: 67,947,994

    Amounts Not Yet Recognized by Valuation Year

Development of Investment Gain/(Loss)

Development of Actuarial Value of Assets

ACTUARIAL ASSET VALUATION
September 30, 2022

Actuarial Assets for funding purposes are developed by recognizing the total actuarial investment gain or loss for each Plan 
Year over a five year period.  In the first year, 20% of the gain or loss is recognized.  In the second year 40%, in the third 
year 60%, in the fourth year 80%, and in the fifth year 100% of the gain or loss is recognized.  The actuarial investment 
gain or loss is defined as the actual return on investments minus the actuarial assumed investment return. Actuarial Assets 
shall not be less than 80% nor greater than 120% of Market Value of Assets.

Gains/(Losses) Not Yet Recognized

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 24



SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
Actuarial Asset Basis

REVENUES
Contributions:
  Employer 1,625,000.00

Total Contributions 1,625,000.00

Earnings from Investments:
  Interest & Dividends 1,753,047.01
  Net Realized Gain (Loss) (436,308.38)
  Unrealized Gain (Loss) (14,064,567.72)
  Change in Actuarial Value 16,710,420.00

Total Earnings and Investment Gains 3,962,590.91

EXPENDITURES
Distributions to Members:
  Benefit Payments 2,029,993.02
  Lump Sum Distributions 1,196,165.76

Total Distributions 3,226,158.78

Expenses:

  Investment related¹ 382,799.97
  Administrative 62,588.02

Total Expenses 445,387.99

Change in Net Assets for the Year 1,916,044.14

Net Assets Beginning of the Year 66,031,949.65

Net Assets End of the Year² 67,947,993.79

¹Investment related expenses include investment advisory, custodial and performance monitoring fees.
²Net Assets may be limited for actuarial consideration.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 25



$0.00

0.00

(1,625,000.00)

($1,625,000.00)

(1) Required Sponsor Contributions

(2) Less 2021 Prepaid Contribution

(3) Less Actual Sponsor Contributions

(4) Sponsor Contributions in Excess of Minimum Requirement Applied to
Reduce Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as of September 30, 2022

SPONSOR CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF MINIMUM REQUIREMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED (FYE) SEPTEMBER 30, 2022  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 26



HISTORY OF ASSET VALUES AND INVESTMENT RETURNS

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

70,000,000

80,000,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

History of Asset Values
(Market Value vs. Actuarial Value)

Actuarial Value of Assets Market Value of Assets

-20.00%

-15.00%

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

History of Investment Returns
(Market Value vs. Actuarial Value)

Return on Actuarial Value of Assets Return on Market Value of Assets Assumed Return

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 27



STATISTICAL DATA

10/1/2022 10/1/2021 10/1/2020 10/1/2019

Actives

316 349 399 456
50.6 49.9 49.0 48.4
33.6 33.7 34.0 34.4
17.0 16.2 15.0 14.0
N/A N/A N/A N/A

116 106 104 97
71.4 71.5 71.2 71.5

$17,319 $16,876 $17,131 $16,622

0 0 0 1
N/A N/A N/A 81.8
N/A N/A N/A $2,968

6 6 6 6
62.9 65.3 64.3 63.3

$14,864 $15,085 $15,085 $15,085

236 233 213 202
54.9 54.4 55.3 55.2

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Age at Employment 
Average Past Service 
Average Annual Salary

Service Retirees

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Annual Benefit

Beneficiaries

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Annual Benefit

Disability Retirees

Number
Average Current Age 
Average Annual Benefit

Terminated Vested

Number
Average Current Age  
Average Annual Benefit ¹ $5,289 $5,516 $5,698 $5,692

 ¹ The Average Annual Benefit reflects only participants due annuities.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 28



AGE AND SERVICE DISTRIBUTION  

PAST SERVICE  

AGE  0 1 2 3 4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30+ Total

15 - 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

20 - 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

25 - 29 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 8

30 - 34 0 0 0 0 0 13 4 1 0 0 0 18

35 - 39 0 0 0 0 0 12 13 10 1 0 0 36

40 - 44 0 0 0 0 0 10 13 18 2 1 0 44

45 - 49 0 0 0 0 0 6 8 7 6 2 0 29

50 - 54 0 0 0 0 0 9 9 10 5 5 3 41

55 - 59 0 0 0 0 0 6 8 13 11 11 9 58

60 - 64 0 0 0 0 0 7 5 16 13 6 8 55

65+ 0 0 0 0 0 6 3 8 5 2 3 27

Total 0 0 0 0 0 77 63 83 43 27 23 316

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 29



VALUATION PARTICIPANT RECONCILIATION  

349

(18)
(7)

0
(1)
0

(7)
316

0

316

1. Active lives

a. Number in prior valuation 10/1/2021

b. Terminations
i. Vested (partial or full) with deferred annuity

ii. Full lump sum distribution received
c. Deaths

i. Beneficiary receiving benefits
ii. No future benefits payable

d. Disabled
e. Retired
f. Continuing participants
g. New entrants

h. Total active life participants in valuation

2. Non-Active lives (including beneficiaries receiving benefits)

Service
Retirees,
Vested Receiving Receiving Vested

Receiving Death Disability (Deferred
Benefits Benefits Benefits Annuity) Total

106 0 6 233 345

12 0 0 (5) 7
0 0 0 18 18
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
(2) 0 (1) 0 (3)
0 0 1 (1) 0
0 0 0 (9) (9)
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

a. Number prior valuation

Retired
Vested (Deferred Annuity) 
Vested (Due Refund)
Hired/Terminated in Same Year 
Death, With Survivor
Death, No Survivor
Disabled
Lump Sum Distribution   
Rehires
Expired Annuities
Data Corrections

b. Number current valuation 116 0 6 236 358

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 30



SUMMARY OF CURRENT PLAN 
 

Eligibility Full-time or part-time employees who regularly work at 
least 20 hours per week and five (5) months per year and 
who perform at least 1000 hours of service per year may 
participate after 1 year of continuous service.  The 
defined benefit pension plan was closed and frozen 
effective September 30, 2016. 

 
Continuous Service Total years and completed months of continuous 

employment as an eligible employee participating in the 
Plan.  If the employee has previously received a cash-out 
of the value of a previous benefit, service will be 
credited only if the prior service is purchased. 

 
Earnings Basic compensation paid at the base rate, excluding 

commissions, overtime, bonuses and any other non-
regular payments.  

 
Average Monthly Earnings Average Compensation for the highest 60 consecutive 

months of the 10 years immediately preceding 
retirement or termination. The average is frozen as of 
October 1, 2016. 

 
Member Contributions None. 
 
Employer Contributions Remaining amount required in order to pay current costs 

and amortize unfunded past service cost, if any, as 
provided in Part VII, Chapter 112, F.S.  

 
Normal Retirement 
 

 Date Earlier of: 1) age 65, regardless of Continuous Service, 
2) age 60 and 25 years of Continuous Service, or 3) 30 
years of Continuous Service, regardless of Age. 

 
 Benefit 1.75% of Average Monthly Earnings up to $1,000, plus 

1.50% of average Monthly Earnings in excess of $1,000, 
times Continuous Service. Benefit accruals are frozen as 
of October 1, 2016. 

 
 Form of Benefit Life Annuity (options available). 

 
Early Retirement 
 

 Eligibility Age 55 with 20 years of Continuous Service.  
 

 Benefit Accrued benefit, reduced 6.67% for each of the first five 
years, and 3.33% for each of the next five years by 
which the benefit commencement date precedes Age 65. 

 
 

 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 31



Vesting 
 

 Schedule  
Years of Service Vested Percentage 

Less than 5 None 
5 50% 
6 60 
7 70 
8 80 
9 90 

10 or More 100 
  

Benefit Amount Member will receive the vested portion of his (her) 
accrued benefit payable at the otherwise Early (reduced) 
or Age 65. 

 
Disability 
 

 Eligibility 10 years of Continuous Service 
 

Exclusions Disability resulting from use of drugs, 
illegal participation in riots, service in military, etc. 

 

Benefit Normal Retirement benefit accrued to date of disability 
(no reduction for commencement before Normal 
Retirement date). Accrued benefits are frozen as of 
October 1, 2016. 

 
Duration Payable for life or until recovery (as determined by the 

Board).   
 
Death Benefits 
  

 Eligibility 5 years of Continuous Service 
 

Benefit Accrued benefit as of the date of death, payable as a 
lump sum. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 32



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

  Short Term Investments

  Money Market

  Cash

Total Cash and Equivalents

Receivables:

  Investment Income

Total Receivable

Investments:

  Fixed Income

  Equities

  Miscellaneous

  Stocks

  Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds:

    Real Estate

Total Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES 

Payables:

  Lump Sum Distributions

  Benefit Payments

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS

   MARKET VALUE

2,034,535

81,566

36,316

2,152,417

169,196

169,196

21,554,925

21,031,730

4,720,931

7,626,784

2,410,721

57,345,091

59,666,704

130,182

3,000

133,182

59,533,522

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 33



ADDITIONS

Contributions:

  Employer 1,625,000

Total Contributions 1,625,000

Investment Income:

  Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments (14,500,876)

  Interest & Dividends 1,753,047

  Less Investment Expense¹ (382,800)

Net Investment Income (13,130,629)

Total Additions (11,505,629)

DEDUCTIONS

Distributions to Members:

  Benefit Payments 2,029,993

  Lump Sum Distributions 1,196,166

Total Distributions 3,226,159

Administrative Expense 62,588

Total Deductions 3,288,747

Net Increase in Net Position (14,794,376)

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS

Beginning of the Year 74,327,898

End of the Year 59,533,522

¹Investment related expenses include investment advisory, custodial and performance monitoring fees.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Market Value Basis

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 34



Plan Administration

Plan Membership as of October 1, 2021:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 112              

Inactive Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 233              

Active Plan Members 349              

694              

Benefits Provided

Contributions

Member Contributions: None.

Investment Policy:

The following was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy as of September 30, 2022:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Large Cap Equity 35%

Mid and Small Cap 20%

International Equity 5%

Alternatives 10%

Fixed Income 30%

Total 100%

Concentrations: 

Rate of Return:

(For the Year Ended September 30, 2022)

The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Hospital Board may appoint a committee of four or more persons 

to be known as the Pension Administrative Committee to assist with the administration of the Plan. At least one member of the 

Committee shall come from each of the following groups:

- a member of the Board;

- a member of the management group of the Employer;

- an Employee of the Employer;

- a representative from the Employer's community.

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the annual money-weighted rate of return on Pension Plan investments, net of Pension Plan 

investment expense, was -17.62 percent.

The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 

amounts actually invested.

Employer Contributions: Remaining amount required in order to pay current costs and amortize unfunded past service cost, if any, 

as provided in Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  

A summary of the benefit provisions can be found in the October 1, 2021 Actuarial Valuation Report for Parrish Medical Center, 

Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

Full-time or part-time employees who regularly work at least 20 hours per week and five (5) months per year and who perform at 

least 1000 hours of service per year may participate after 1 year of continuous service. The defined benefit pension plan was closed 

and frozen effective September 30, 2016.

The Plan did not hold investments in any one organization that represent 5 percent or more of the Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net 

Position.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Plan provides retirement, termination, disability and death benefits.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 35



The components of the Net Pension Liability of the Sponsor on September 30, 2022 were as follows:

Total Pension Liability 43,511,637$    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position (59,533,522)$  

Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (16,021,885)$  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of Total Pension Liability 136.82%

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation 2.80%

Salary Increases N/A Benefits are frozen as of September 30, 2016.

Discount Rate 6.85%

Investment Rate of Return 6.85%

Mortality Rate Healthy Active Lives:

Female: PubG.H-2010 for Employees. 

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Employees, set back one year.  

Mortality Rate Healthy Retiree Lives:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.

Mortality Rate Beneficiary Lives:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.  

Mortality Rate Disabled Lives:

PubG.H-2010 for Disabled Retirees, set forward three years.

NET PENSION LIABILITY OF THE SPONSOR

The Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments can be determined using a building-block method in which 

best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of Pension Plan investment expenses and 

inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return by weighting the expected future real rates of 

return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The most recent actuarial experience study used to review the other significant assumptions was dated September 10, 2021.

For 2022 the inflation rate assumption of the investment advisor was 2.50%.

The above described mortality assumption rates were mandated by Chapter 2015-157, Laws of Florida.  This law mandates the use 

of the assumptions used in either of the two most recent valuations of the Florida Retirement System (FRS).  The above rates are 

those outlined in Milliman’s July 1, 2021 FRS valuation report for non-special-risk employees. We feel this assumption 

sufficiently accommodates future mortality improvements.

All rates are projected generationally with Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018.  

The Total Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2021 updated to September 30, 2022 using 

the following actuarial assumptions:

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 36



Large Cap Equity

Mid and Small Cap

International Equity

Alternatives

Fixed Income

¹ Source: Anderson Financial Partners, Inc.

Discount Rate:

The Discount Rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.85 percent.

1% Decrease 

Current 

Discount Rate 1% Increase 

5.85% 6.85% 7.85%

Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (12,938,055)$  (16,021,885)$  (18,659,454)$  

Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Pension Plan's target asset allocation as of 

September 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Long Term Expected Real Rate of 

Return¹

10.0%

4.5%

The projection of cash flows used to determine the Discount Rate assumed that Plan Member contributions will be made at the 

current contribution rate and that Sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 

determined contribution rates and the Member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the Long-Term 

Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 

Total Pension Liability.

10.0%

10.0%

10.0%

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 37



09/30/2022 09/30/2021 09/30/2020

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost 204,975          394,962          486,190          

Interest 2,948,462       2,846,366       3,001,709       

Changes of benefit terms -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience (866,981)        (893,533)        (532,461)        

Changes of assumptions -                 4,082,572       370,157          

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (939,703)        3,082,916       (1,295,514)     

Total Pension Liability - Beginning      44,451,340      41,368,424      42,663,938 

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 43,511,637$   44,451,340$   41,368,424$   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer 1,625,000       -                 -                 

Net Investment Income (13,130,629)   14,646,256     5,285,797       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Administrative Expense (62,588)          (41,073)          (67,772)          

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (14,794,376)   11,257,732     596,916          

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning      74,327,898      63,070,166      62,473,250 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)  $  59,533,522  $  74,327,898  $  63,070,166 

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) (16,021,885)$ (29,876,558)$ (21,701,742)$ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the Total Pension Liability 136.82% 167.21% 152.46%

Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Net Pension Liability as a percentage of Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of assumptions:

retirement and 75% for all other vested members.

5) Reduced the disability rates by 90%.

For measurement date 09/30/2021, the following the changes were made to the assumptions as a result of the experience study 

dated September 10, 2021:

1) Investment return assumption was reduced from 7.10% to 6.85%, net of investment related expenses.

2) Adjusted the normal and early retirement rates, resulting in generally more retirements than previously assumed.

3) Adjusted the assumed rates of withdrawal, resulting in generally more withdrawals than previously assumed.  

4) Reduced the lump sum election assumption from 100% to 60% for those separating employment immediately eligible for 

Additionally, moved from an age-based table to an age and service-based table.

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 38



Fiscal Year Ended

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution

Contributions 

in relation to 

the Actuarially 

Determined 

Contributions

Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess)

Covered 

Payroll

Contributions 

as a percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll

09/30/2022 -$               1,625,000$     (1,625,000)$   N/A N/A

09/30/2021 -$               -$               -$               N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date: 10/01/2020

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates can be found in the October 1, 2020 Actuarial Valuation for 

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which 

contributions are reported.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 39



Fiscal Year Ended

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return 

Net of Investment Expense

09/30/2022 -17.62%

09/30/2021 23.72%

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 40



Plan Description

Plan Membership as of October 1, 2021:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 112              

Inactive Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 233              

Active Plan Members 349              

694              

Benefits Provided

Contributions

Member Contributions: None.

Net Pension Liability 

The measurement date is September 30, 2022.

The measurement period for the pension expense was October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022.

The reporting period is October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023.

The Sponsor's Net Pension Liability was measured as of September 30, 2022.

The Total Pension Liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation 2.80%

Salary Increases N/A Benefits are frozen as of September 30, 2016.

Discount Rate 6.85%

Investment Rate of Return 6.85%

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(For the Year Ended September 30, 2023)

The Total Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2021 updated to September 30, 2022 using 

the following actuarial assumptions:

The Plan provides retirement, termination, disability and death benefits.

The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Hospital Board may appoint a committee of four or more persons 

to be known as the Pension Administrative Committee to assist with the administration of the Plan. At least one member of the 

Committee shall come from each of the following groups:

- a member of the Board;

- a member of the management group of the Employer;

- an Employee of the Employer;

- a representative from the Employer's community.

Full-time or part-time employees who regularly work at least 20 hours per week and five (5) months per year and who perform at 

least 1000 hours of service per year may participate after 1 year of continuous service. The defined benefit pension plan was 

closed and frozen effective September 30, 2016.

A summary of the benefit provisions can be found in the October 1, 2021 Actuarial Valuation Report for Parrish Medical Center, 

Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

Employer Contributions: Remaining amount required in order to pay current costs and amortize unfunded past service cost, if any, 

as provided in Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 41



Mortality Rate Healthy Active Lives:

Female: PubG.H-2010 for Employees. 

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Employees, set back one year.  

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long Term Expected 

Real Rate of Return¹

Large Cap Equity 35% 10.0%

Mid and Small Cap 20% 10.0%

International Equity 5% 10.0%

Alternatives 10% 10.0%

Fixed Income 30% 4.5%

Total 100%

¹ Source: Anderson Financial Partners, Inc.

Discount Rate:

The Discount Rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.85 percent.

Mortality Rate Healthy Retiree Lives:

These ranges are combined to produce the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return by weighting the expected future real rates of 

return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the Discount Rate assumed that Plan Member contributions will be made at the 

current contribution rate and that Sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 

determined contribution rates and the Member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the Long-Term 

Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 

Total Pension Liability.

The most recent actuarial experience study used to review the other significant assumptions was dated September 10, 2021.

Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Pension Plan's target asset allocation as 

of September 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.

Mortality Rate Disabled Lives:

PubG.H-2010 for Disabled Retirees, set forward three years.

All rates are projected generationally with Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018.  

For 2022 the inflation rate assumption of the investment advisor was 2.50%.

The Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Pension Plan investments can be determined using a building-block method in which 

best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of Pension Plan investment expenses and 

inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

The above described mortality assumption rates were mandated by Chapter 2015-157, Laws of Florida.  This law mandates the 

use of the assumptions used in either of the two most recent valuations of the Florida Retirement System (FRS).  The above rates 

are those outlined in Milliman’s July 1, 2021 FRS valuation report for non-special-risk employees. We feel this assumption 

sufficiently accommodates future mortality improvements.

Mortality Rate Beneficiary Lives:

Female:  PubG.H-2010 (Below Median) for Healthy Retirees.

Male:  PubG.H-2010 for Healthy Retirees, set back one year.  

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 42



Total Pension 

Liability

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position

Net Pension 

Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)

Reporting Period Ending September 30, 2022  $  44,451,340  $  74,327,898  $ (29,876,558)

Changes for a Year:

Service Cost           204,975                       -           204,975 

Interest        2,948,462                       -        2,948,462 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience          (866,981)                       -          (866,981)

Changes of assumptions                       -                       -                       - 

Changes of benefit terms                       -                       -                       - 

Contributions - Employer                       -        1,625,000       (1,625,000)

Net Investment Income                       -     (13,130,629)      13,130,629 

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions       (3,226,159)       (3,226,159)                       - 

Administrative Expense                       -            (62,588)             62,588 

Net Changes          (939,703)     (14,794,376)      13,854,673 

Reporting Period Ending September 30, 2023  $  43,511,637  $  59,533,522  $ (16,021,885)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the Discount Rate.

1% Decrease 

Current 

Discount Rate 1% Increase 

5.85% 6.85% 7.85%

Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (12,938,055)$ (16,021,885)$ (18,659,454)$ 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.  

Detailed information about the pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately issued Plan financial report.

Increase (Decrease)

CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 43



For the year ended September 30, 2022, the Sponsor has recognized a Pension Expense of -$2,442,075.

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 1,094,418        2,846,893        

Changes of assumptions 4,042,462        -                  

Net difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan investments -                  8,295,946        

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,625,000        -                  

Total 6,761,880$      11,142,839$    

OUTFLOW

Year ended September 30:

2023 132,481$                    1,205,239$      (871,644)$       

2024 132,481$                    1,205,239$      (1,096,788)$    

2025 132,481$                    1,205,239$      (1,979,814)$    
2026 132,482$                    1,238,008$      (2,057,713)$    

2027 132,482$                    -$                    -$                    

Thereafter 264,964$                    -$                    -$                    

FINAL PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED 

INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS

On September 30, 2022, the Sponsor reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to 

pensions from the following sources:

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions will be 

recognized in Pension Expense as follows:

FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

The outcome of the Deferred Outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date has been recognized as a reduction of the net Pension Liability in the year ended September 30, 2022.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 44



For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Sponsor will recognize a Pension Expense of $726,180.

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 480,968           2,494,617        

Changes of assumptions 2,346,712        -                  

Net difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan investments 8,414,471        -                  

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date TBD -                  

Total TBD 2,494,617$      

OUTFLOW INFLOW

Year ended September 30:

2024 (657,968)$                   1,173,356$             1,804,100$      2,319,488$      

2025 (1,138,936)$                1,173,356$             1,402,042$      1,436,462$      

2026 (216,745)$                   -$                            1,575,308$      1,358,563$      

2027 -$                                -$                            3,633,021$      3,633,021$      

2028 -$                                -$                            -$                    -$                    

Thereafter -$                                -$                            -$                    -$                    

PRELIMINARY PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS

On September 30, 2023, the Sponsor reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to 

pensions from the following sources:

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions will be 

recognized in Pension Expense as follows:

The outcome of the Deferred Outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net Pension Liability in the year ended September 30, 2023.

FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 45



Reporting Period Ending 09/30/2023 09/30/2022 09/30/2021

Measurement Date 09/30/2022 09/30/2021 09/30/2020

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost 204,975          394,962          486,190          

Interest 2,948,462       2,846,366       3,001,709       

Changes of benefit terms -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience (866,981)        (893,533)        (532,461)        

Changes of assumptions -                 4,082,572       370,157          

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (939,703)        3,082,916       (1,295,514)     

Total Pension Liability - Beginning      44,451,340      41,368,424      42,663,938 

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)  $  43,511,637 44,451,340$   41,368,424$   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer 1,625,000       -                 -                 

Net Investment Income (13,130,629)   14,646,256     5,285,797       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions (3,226,159)     (3,347,451)     (4,621,109)     

Administrative Expense (62,588)          (41,073)          (67,772)          

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (14,794,376)   11,257,732     596,916          

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning      74,327,898      63,070,166      62,473,250 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)  $  59,533,522  $  74,327,898  $  63,070,166 

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) (16,021,885)$ (29,876,558)$ (21,701,742)$ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the Total Pension Liability 136.82% 167.21% 152.46%

Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Net Pension Liability as a percentage of Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of assumptions:

retirement and 75% for all other vested members.

5) Reduced the disability rates by 90%.

4) Reduced the lump sum election assumption from 100% to 60% for those separating employment immediately eligible for 

1) Investment return assumption was reduced from 7.10% to 6.85%, net of investment related expenses.

Additionally, moved from an age-based table to an age and service-based table.

For measurement date 09/30/2021, the following the changes were made to the assumptions as a result of the experience study 

dated September 10, 2021:

2) Adjusted the normal and early retirement rates, resulting in generally more retirements than previously assumed.

3) Adjusted the assumed rates of withdrawal, resulting in generally more withdrawals than previously assumed.  

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 46



Fiscal Year Ended

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution

Contributions 

in relation to 

the Actuarially 

Determined 

Contributions

Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess)

Covered 

Payroll

Contributions 

as a percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll

09/30/2022 -$                1,625,000$     (1,625,000)$   N/A N/A

09/30/2021 -$                -$               -$               N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date: 10/01/2020

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates can be found in the October 1, 2020 Actuarial Valuation for Parrish 

Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement prepared by Foster & Foster Actuaries and Consultants.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Last 2 Fiscal Years

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which 

contributions are reported.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 47



EXPENSE DEVELOPMENT AND AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES

The following information is not required to be disclosed but is provided for informational purposes.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 48



Net Pension 

Liability

Deferred 

Inflows

Deferred 

Outflows

Pension 

Expense

Beginning balance  $ (21,701,742)  $    4,934,914  $    4,661,696  $                 -   

Employer Contributions made after September 30, 2021 -                 -                 1,625,000       -                 

Total Pension Liability Factors:

Service Cost 394,962          -                 -                 394,962          

Interest 2,846,366       -                 -                 2,846,366       

Changes in benefit terms -                 -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

with regard to economic or demographic assumptions (893,533)        893,533          -                 -                 

Current year amortization of experience difference -                 (1,002,512)     (613,450)        (389,062)        

Change in assumptions about future economic or 

demographic factors or other inputs 4,082,572       -                 4,082,572       -                 

Current year amortization of change in assumptions -                 -                 (1,787,764)     1,787,764       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,347,451)     -                 -                 -                 

Net change 3,082,916       (108,979)        3,306,358       4,640,030       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Projected Net Investment Income 4,357,689       -                 -                 (4,357,689)     

Difference between projected and actual earnings on 

Pension Plan investments 10,288,567     10,288,567     -                 -                 

Current year amortization -                 (3,167,547)     (402,058)        (2,765,489)     

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,347,451)     -                 -                 -                 

Administrative Expenses (41,073)          -                 -                 41,073            

Net change 11,257,732     7,121,020       (402,058)        (7,082,105)     

Ending Balance  $ (29,876,558)  $  11,946,955  $    7,565,996  $   (2,442,075)

FINAL COMPONENTS OF PENSION EXPENSE
FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 49



Net Pension 

Liability

Deferred 

Inflows

Deferred 

Outflows

Pension 

Expense

Beginning balance  $ (29,876,558)  $  11,946,955  $    7,565,996  $                 -   

Employer Contributions made after September 30, 2022 -                 -                 TBD* -                 

Total Pension Liability Factors:

Service Cost 204,975          -                 -                 204,975          

Interest 2,948,462       -                 -                 2,948,462       

Changes in benefit terms -                 -                 -                 -                 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

with regard to economic or demographic assumptions (866,981)        866,981          -                 -                 

Current year amortization of experience difference -                 (1,219,257)     (613,450)        (605,807)        

Change in assumptions about future economic or 

demographic factors or other inputs -                 -                 -                 -                 

Current year amortization of change in assumptions -                 -                 (1,695,750)     1,695,750       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,226,159)     -                 -                 -                 

Net change (939,703)        (352,276)        (2,309,200)     4,243,380       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Contributions - Employer 1,625,000       -                 (1,625,000)     -                 

Projected Net Investment Income 5,034,478       -                 -                 (5,034,478)     

Difference between projected and actual earnings on 

Pension Plan investments (18,165,107)   -                 18,165,107     -                 

Current year amortization -                 (2,580,391)     (4,035,081)     1,454,690       

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Employee 

Contributions (3,226,159)     -                 -                 -                 

Administrative Expenses (62,588)          -                 -                 62,588            

Net change (14,794,376)   (2,580,391)     12,505,026     (3,517,200)     

Ending Balance  $ (16,021,885)  $    9,014,288  TBD  $       726,180 

PRELIMINARY COMPONENTS OF PENSION EXPENSE
FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

*  Employer Contributions subsequent to the measurement date made after September 30, 2022 but made on or before 

September 30, 2023 need to be added.

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 50



Plan Year 

Ending

Differences Between 

Projected and Actual 

Earnings

Recognition 

Period (Years) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Recognitio 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2022 18,165,107$              5 -$                   3,633,023$    3,633,021$    3,633,021$    3,633,021$    3,633,021$    -$                   -$                   -$                   

2021 (10,288,567)$             5 (2,057,715)$  (2,057,713)$  (2,057,713)$  (2,057,713)$  (2,057,713)$  -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2020 (866,330)$                  5 (173,266)$     (173,266)$     (173,266)$     (173,266)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2019 2,010,291$                5 402,058$       402,058$       402,058$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2018 (1,747,061)$               5 (349,412)$     (349,412)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2017 (2,935,771)$               5 (587,154)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense (2,765,489)$  1,454,690$    1,804,100$    1,402,042$    1,575,308$    3,633,021$    -$                   -$                   -$                   

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - INVESTMENTS

Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense Arising from the Recognition of the of Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pension Plan Investments

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 51



Plan Year 

Ending

Changes of 

Assumptions

Recognition 

Period (Years) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Recognitio 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2021 4,082,572$                4 1,020,643$    1,020,643$    1,020,643$    1,020,643$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2020 370,157$                   5 74,031$         74,031$         74,031$         74,031$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2019 472,090$                   6 78,682$         78,682$         78,682$         78,682$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2016 3,656,761$                7 522,394$       522,394$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2014 736,112$                   8 92,014$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense 1,787,764$    1,695,750$    1,173,356$    1,173,356$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS

Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense Arising from the Recognition of the Effects of Changes of Assumptions

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 52



30

Plan Year 

Ending

Differences Between 

Expected and Actual 

Experience

Recognition 

Period (Years) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Recognitio 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2022 (866,981)$                  4 -$                   (216,746)$     (216,745)$     (216,745)$     (216,745)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2021 (893,533)$                  4 (223,384)$     (223,383)$     (223,383)$     (223,383)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2020 (532,461)$                  5 (106,492)$     (106,492)$     (106,492)$     (106,492)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2019 (1,177,650)$               6 (196,275)$     (196,275)$     (196,275)$     (196,275)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2018 (2,772,290)$               7 (396,041)$     (396,041)$     (396,041)$     (396,041)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2017 3,366,776$                7 480,968$       480,968$       480,968$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2016 (562,243)$                  7 (80,320)$        (80,320)$        -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

2015 1,059,852$                8 132,482$       132,482$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense (389,062)$     (605,807)$     (657,968)$     (1,138,936)$  (216,745)$     -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - EXPERIENCE

Increase (Decrease) in Pension Expense Arising from the Recognition of the Effects of Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

Parrish Medical Center, Inc. Pension Plan and Trust Fund Agreement FOSTER & FOSTER | 53



 
MEMORANDUM         
__________________________________________________________________ 
To:    Finance Committee 
  

 From:  Cynthia Kuehn, Director Laboratory Services  
 
Subject:  FY23 Capital Budget Request–Laboratory Hemochron Signature Elite 

Instruments. 
 
 Date:  January 31, 2023 
__________________________________________________________________ 
This request is for the capital purchase of the Hemochron Signature Elite Laboratory Instruments 
for the new EP Cardiology program at Parrish Medical Center (PMC).  
 
The new equipment will be used in the Cath laboratory during procedures to provide critical 
Activated Clotting Testing to monitor the patient’s coagulation status during the procedure. 
These instruments provide a quick result turn around time needed to reduce the potential of 
strokes.  
 
Based on the new EP cardiology program this testing is needed during the procedures and 
requesting your approval to purchase this equipment.  
 
Representatives from the Cardiac Cath Lab, Clinical Laboratory Services, and Administration 
have been involved in and the decision.  
 
Motion: Recommend the Board of Directors approve the purchase of two (2) Hemochron 
Signature Elite instruments for the new EP Cardiology program, at a total cost of $27,525. 
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM         
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    Finance Committee 
  

 From:  Matthew F. Graybill, Executive Director of Surgical, Emergency and Critical  
   Care Services 
 
 Subject:  FY23 Capital Budget Request – Endoscope/Colonoscope Instrumentation and  
  Equipment Lease Buyout 

 
 Date:  February 1, 2023 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 
This request is for the budgeted capital lease buyout of the endoscope and colonoscope 
instrumentation and equipment at Parrish Medical Center. 
 
The commencement of this lease was February 1, 2021 for a term of twenty-seven (27) months. 
A full assessment of this equipment was recently performed with considerations given to the 
equipment quality, service and cost. Representatives from the Surgical Services, Clinical 
Engineering, Finance, Administration, and more have been involved in the analysis, evaluation, 
and the decision. 
 
Based on these considerations, at this time, we are requesting your approval to buyout the lease 
of the endoscope and colonoscope instrumentation and equipment at Parrish Medical Center.  
 
Motion: To recommend to the Board of Directors to approve the buyout of the endoscope and 
colonoscope instrumentation and equipment at Parrish Medical Center at fair market value 
(FMV), at a total cost not to exceed the amount of $187,620. 





DATE: 01/13/23 @ 1333 
i.JSER: FRANZAL 

?arrish Medical Center FA *Live* 
OJRRENT VALUES REPORT 

PAGE 1 

i¼i��JLiiU�lf�il1ifiiiiiiJ�,1i 
FACILITY: 
DEPARTMENT, 

SYSTEM 
1.680 1 OFF-SITE PROPERTY' 

�u;���i�tl��Ji���tr�,f$1jS\&���:��$t1�;§�,!#��jfi�����(i:ifffe;�;���k;Y�;��?J{�I�lli1�f;��:�fj;�I,�1��t�;i;t��,,��tr};f$1,§;�Ji 
CLASS: BLD-805 CENTURY BUILDING - 805 CENTURY MEDICAL DRIVE 

KN028863 805 CENTURY MEDICAL DRIVE (BUILDING) ACTIVE 04/13/07 02/06/07 
,/ 

494334.67 100926.52 ,, 

--------- ------·--------

494334.67 100926.52 

CLASS: LND-805 CENTURY LANO - 805 CENTIJRY'MEDICAL DRIVE 

KN028864 805 CENTURY MED.ICAL DRIVE (LAND) ACTIVE 04/13/07 02/06/07 94338.68 ,,, 94338.68 ( 
--------------- ---------------

94338".68 94338.68 

TOTAL FOR DEPARTMENT: 588673.35 195265.20 



























EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   
Stan Retz, CPA, Chairman 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. 
Herman A. Cole, Jr.  
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
Maureen Rupe 
George Mikitarian, President/CEO (non-voting) 
 

DRAFT AGENDA 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

FIRST FLOOR, CONFERENCE ROOM 2/3/4/5 
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

I. Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion to approve the minutes of the December 5, 2022 meeting. 
 

II. Reading of the Huddle 

III. Attorney Report – Mr. Boyles 

IV. Other 

V. Executive Session (if needed) 

ADJOURNMENT 
NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL 
NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND THAT THE 
RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 
PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING SHOULD CONTACT THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES, AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.  FOR INFORMATION 
CALL (321) 268-6110. 
 
THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY 
BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE.   TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH DISCUSSIONS, A JOINT PUBLIC MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED. 



 
 

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Executive Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District operating 
Parrish Medical Center was held on December 5, 2022 in Conference Room 2/3/4/5, First Floor. The 
following members were present: 

 
Stan Retz, CPA, Chairman  
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., Vice Chairman 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.      
Maureen Rupe  
George Mikitarian (non-voting)  

 
Members Absent:  
             Herman A. Cole, Jr. (excused) 
 
A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file copy of these 
minutes. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mr. Retz called the meeting to order at 1:28 p.m.  
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Dr. Galfo and 
approved (4 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).  
 
ACTION TAKEN:  MOVED TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 3, 2022 MEETING MINUTES OF 
THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD, AS PRESENTED. 
 
READING OF THE HUDDLE 
 
Dr. Galfo read the Weekly Huddle. 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
Mr. Mikitarian summarized the longstanding issue with Brevard County EMS, noting that the County 
Emergency Medical Services has continued to divert ambulances away from Parrish Medical Center.  
Gray Robinson has been asked to investigate our formal options as our informal paths have not been 
successful long-term. 
 
Mr. Loftin reviewed several instances of patient harm due to the diversion of ambulances.  
 
Ms. Ramos shared the Florida Statute regarding action against the County resulting in two options. Option 
one is to proceed with the conflict resolution process, which included a series of steps, and if not resolved, 
ends in litigation. Option two is to bypass the conflict resolution process and move ahead with litigation.  
 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 
 

 

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Dr. Galfo and 
approved (4 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).  
 
ACTION TAKEN:  MOVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO 
APPROVE THE RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH 
BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT INITIATING INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
CONFLICT RESOLUTION PROCEDURES PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 164 OF THE FLORIDA 
STATUTE WITH BREVARD COUNTY TO RESOLVE THE CONFLICT OVER EMERGENCY 
MEDICAL TRANSPORT DIVERSION ISSUES. 
 
 
 
OTHER 
 
There was no other business to come before the committee.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the committee adjourned at 2:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      Stan Retz, CPA 
      Chairman      



EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
Billie Fitzgerald, Chairperson 
Maureen Rupe, Vice Chairperson 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. (ex-officio) 
Ashok Shah, M.D. 
Aluino Ochoa, M.D. 
George Mikitarian, President/CEO (Non-voting) 
 

 
 
 

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

FIRST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 2/3/4/5 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 

I. Review and Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve the minutes of the December 5, 2022 meeting. 

II. SiVATS – Dr. Tishko  

III. Other 

IV.  Executive Session (if necessary) 
 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

NOTE:  IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE WITH 
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND 
THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 
PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, 
FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.  FOR INFORMATION CALL (321) 
268-6110. 

 
THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN 
DISCUSSIONS OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE.  TO THE EXTENT OF 
SUCH DISCUSSION, A JOINT PUBLIC MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT, BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE AND NORTH 
BREVARD MEDICAL SUUPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED. 



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

COMMITTEE 
 
A regular meeting of the Educational, Governmental and Community Relations Committee of 
the North Brevard County Hospital District operating Parrish Medical Center was held on 
December 5, 2022 at 2:11 p.m. in Conference Room 2/3/4/5, First Floor.  The following 
members were present: 
 

Maureen Rupe, Vice Chairperson  
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.  
Ashok, Shah, M.D.  
Biju Mathews, M.D  
George Mikitarian (non-voting)  

 
Member(s) Absent: 

Billie Fitzgerald, Chairperson (excused) 
 

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file 
copy of these minutes. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Ms. Rupe called the meeting to order at 2:11 p.m.  
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The following motion was made by Dr. Galfo, seconded by Mr. Specht, and approved (4 ayes, 0 
nays, 0 abstentions).  
 
ACTION TAKEN:  MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 3, 2022 
EDUCATION COMMITTEE MEETING, AS PRESENTED. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY FOR THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS 
ASSESSMENT 

Ms. Sellers summarized the memorandum contained in the packet relative to the Community 
Health Needs Assessment 2022-2025 Strategic Implementation Plan. Discussion ensued and 
the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan seconded by Mr. Retz and approved (4 ayes, 0 
nays, 0 abstentions).  
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
TO APPROVE THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2022-2025 
STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN. 

OTHER 
 
No other items were presented. 
 
 
 



EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the Educational, Governmental and Community 
Relations Committee meeting adjourned at 2:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
          Maureen Rupe 
          Vice Chairperson 



 
 

DRAFT AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING - REGULAR MEETING 

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

NO EARLIER THAN 2:00 P.M.,  
FOLLOWING THE LAST COMMITTEE MEETING 

FIRST FLOOR, CONFERENCE ROOM 2/3/4/5 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II. PMC’s Vision – Healing Families – Healing Communities 

 
III. Approval of Agenda 

 
IV. Recognitions(s) 

A. New Providers (memo included) 
 

V. Review and Approval of Minutes (December 5, 2022 Regular Meeting) 
 

VI. Open Forum for PMC Physicians 
  

VII. Public Input and Comments***1 
 

VIII. Unfinished Business***  
 

IX. New Business*** 
A. 2023 Board of Directors Committee Roster – Mr. Jordan 

 
Motion to approve the 2023 Board of Director Committee Roster, as presented. 
 

X. Medical Staff Report Recommendations/Announcements  
 

XI. Public Comments (as needed for revised Consent Agenda) 
 

XII. Consent Agenda*** 
 
A. Finance 

1. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the Pension Plan 
Actuarial Valuation as of October 1, 2022. 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
PAGE 2 
 

 
2. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the purchase of 

two (2) Hemochron Signature Elite Instruments for the new EP 
Cardiology Program, at a total cost of $27,525. 
 

3. Motion: To recommend to the Board of Directors to approve the buyout 
of the endoscope and colonoscope instrumentation and equipment at 
Parrish Medical Center at fair market value (FMV), at a total cost not 
to exceed the amount of $187,620. 
 

4. Motion to recommend to the Board of Directors to declare the 
equipment listed in the requests for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus 
Property Forms as surplus and obsolete and dispose of same in 
accordance with FS274.05 and FS274.96. 

_________________________________ 
 

. ***1 Pursuant to PMC Policy 9500-154:  
 non-agenda items – 3 minutes per citizen 
 agenda items for board action -- 3 minutes per citizen, permitted prior to board discussion for 

regular agenda action items and prior to board action on consent agenda 
 10 minute total per citizen  
 must be related to the responsibility and authority of the board or directly to an agenda item [see 

items marked ***]   
 
XIII. Committee Reports 

 
A. Quality Committee  

 
B. Budget and Finance Committee  
 
C. Executive Committee  

 
D. Educational, Governmental and Community Relations Committee  

 
E. Planning, Physical Facilities & Properties Committee  

 
XIV. Process and Quality Report – Mr. Mikitarian 

 
A. Other Related Management Issues/Information 

 
B. Hospital Attorney - Mr. Boyles 
 

XVI. Other 
 
XVII. Closing Remarks – Chairman  
 
XVIII. Executive Session (if necessary) 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FEBRUARY 6, 2023 
PAGE 3 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE 
WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND 
THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 
PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING SHOULD CONTACT THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.  FOR INFORMATION 
CALL (321) 268-6110. 
 
THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY 
BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS.    
 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC THAT WILLFULLY INTERRUPTS OR DISTURBS A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IS SUBJECT TO REMOVAL FROM 
THE MEETING BY AN OFFICER AND SUCH OTHER ACTIONS AS MAY BE DEEMED APPROPRIATE AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 871.01 OF THE FLORIDA 
STATUTES.   
 



parrishhealthcare.com

Healing Families – Healing Communities®



parrishhealthcare.com

Healing Families–Healing Communities®

Welcome New Provider

Medical School: Doctor of Medicine – Central 
del Este University (San Pedro de Macoris, DR)

Residency: Internal Medicine – Abington 
Memorial Hospital (Abington, PA)

Fellowships: Cardiology – Allegheny University 
Hospitals (Philadelphia, PA)
Interventional Cardiology – Albert Einstein 
Medical Center (Philadelphia, PA)

Melchor E. Gonzalez, MD, FACC – Interventional Cardiology



  

 
 

 

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
OPERATING 

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REGULAR MEETING 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the North Brevard County Hospital District 
operating Parrish Medical Center (the District) was held at 2:22 p.m. on December 5, 2022 in 
Conference Room 2/3/4/5, First Floor.  The following members were present: 
  

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., Chairman 
Stan Retz, Vice Chairman  
Billy Specht 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.  
Ashok Shah, M.D.  
Maureen Rupe  
 

Member(s) Absent: 
Jerry Noffel (excused) 
Billie Fitzgerald (excused) 
Herman A. Cole, Jr. (excused) 
 
A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to 
the file copy of these minutes. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mr. Jordan called the meeting to order at 2:22 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mr. Jordan led the Board of Directors, staff and public in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PMC’S VISION – Healing Families – Healing Communities® 
 
Mr. Jordan led the Board of Directors, staff and public in reciting PMC’s Vision – Healing 
Families – Healing Communities®.  
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 
 
Mr. Jordan requested approval of the meeting agenda in the packet as revised. Discussion 
ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Specht, seconded by Mr. Retz and 
approved (6 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).   
 
ACTION TAKEN:  MOVED TO APPROVE THE REVISED MEETING AGENDA OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DISTRICT AS PRESENTED.   
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS   
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 
 

 

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Dr. Galfo, seconded by Dr. Shah 
and approved (6 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).   
 
ACTION TAKEN: MOVE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 3, 
2022 REGULAR MEETING, AS PRESENTED.  
 
OPEN FORUM FOR PMC PHYSICIANS 
 
There were no physician comments. 
  
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
There was no unfinished business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
There was no new business. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the consent agenda, and the following motion was made by Dr. 
Galfo, seconded by Mr. Specht and approved (6 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).   
 
ACTION TAKEN:  MOTION TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING REVISED 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

A. Pension 
1. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the appointment of 

membership for Jacqueline Hurley to the Pension Committee to serve the 
duration of Ms. Sylvia Simpsons term ending on March 1, 2023 

B. Finance 
1. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the renewal of 

membership for Stan Retz for a three-year term from January 1, 2023 to 
December 31, 2025. 
 

2. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the Signer’s Resolution 
of the Board of Directors of North Brevard County Hospital District for TD 
Bank and designating authorized signers as presented. 
 

3. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the buyout of the MRI 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS   
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 3 
 
 

 

Lease at Titus Landing at fair market value (FMV), at a total cost not to 
exceed the amount of $239,181. 

 
4. Motion: To recommend to the Board of Directors to declare the equipment 

listed in the requests for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property Forms as 
surplus and obsolete and dispose of same in accordance with FS274.05 and 
FS274.96. 
 

C. Executive 
1. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the Resolution of 

the North Brevard County Hospital District initiating Intergovernmental 
Conflict Resolution Procedures pursuant to Chapter 164 of the Florida 
Statutes with Brevard County to resolve the conflict over Emergency 
Medical Transport Diversion issues. 
 

D. Education 
1. Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve the Community 

Health Needs Assessment 2022-2025 Strategic Implementation Plan, as 
presented. 

 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
Quality Committee 
 
Dr. Galfo reported all items were covered during the Quality Committee meeting.  
 
Finance Committee 
 
Mr. Retz reported all items were covered during the Finance Committee meeting.  
 
Executive Committee 
 
Mr. Retz reported all items were covered during the Executive Committee meeting.  
 
Educational, Governmental and Community Relations Committee 
 
Ms. Rupe reported all items were covered during the Education, Governmental and 
Community Relations Committee meeting.  
 
Planning, Physical Facilities and Properties Committee 
 
Mr. Jordan reported the Planning Physical Facilities and Properties Committee did not meet. 
 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS   
DECEMBER 5, 2022 
PAGE 4 
 
 

 

PROCESS AND QUALITY REPORT 
 
Mr. Mikitarian shared that Lester Eljaiek has accepted the position as CFO and will be 
attending the January meeting. 
 
Hospital Attorney 
 
Legal counsel had no report.   
 
OTHER 
 
There was no other business to come before the Board.  
 
CLOSING REMARKS  
 
Mr. Jordan shared that the recent Gift of Light event was spectacular.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the Parrish Medical Center Board of Directors 
meeting adjourned at 2:29 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.  
       Chairman 













 
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

OPERATING 
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER 

 
 

2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 
_________________________________________________ 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 

Herman A. Cole, Jr. 
Billie Fitzgerald 

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. 

Jerry L. Noffel 
Stan Retz, CPA 
Maureen Rupe 
Billy Specht 

Ashok Shah, M.D. 
 
 

OFFICERS 
 

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., Chairman 
Stan Retz, CPA, Vice Chairman 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D., Secretary 
Herman A. Cole, Jr., Treasurer  

 



2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 
PAGE 2 
 

COMMITTEES 
 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
Stan Retz, CPA, Chairperson 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., Vice Chairperson 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D., Secretary 
Herman A. Cole, Jr., Treasurer 
Maureen Rupe Member-at-Large 
George Mikitarian, President/Chief Executive Officer (Non-voting) 
 
 
EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS 
 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. (ex-officio) 
Stan Retz, CPA 
Billie Fitzgerald,  
Maureen Rupe,  
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
Herman A. Cole, Jr. 
Ashok Shah, M.D. 
Jerry Noffel 
Billy Specht 
Aluino Ochoa, M.D., President/Medical Staff* 
George Mikitarian, President/Chief Executive Officer (Non-voting) 
  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Herman A. Cole, Jr., Chairperson 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., (ex-officio) 
Billie Fitzgerald 
Stan Retz, CPA 
Jerry Noffel 
Billy Specht 
Maureen Rupe 
Christopher Manion, M.D.* 
Aluino Ochoa, M.D., President/Medical Staff** 
George Mikitarian, President/Chief Executive Officer (Non-voting) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 
PAGE 3 
 
PLANNING, PHYSICAL FACILITIES AND PROPERTIES COMMITTEE 
 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. (ex-officio) 
Herman A. Cole, Jr. 
Billie Fitzgerald 
Billy Specht 
Ashok Shah, M.D. 
Aluino Ochoa, M.D., President/Medical Staff* 
George Mikitarian, President/Chief Executive Officer (Non-voting) 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. (ex-officio) 
Herman A. Cole, Jr. 
Stan Retz, CPA 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
 
QUALITY COMMITTEE 
 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.  
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. (ex-officio) 
Stan Retz, CPA 
Herman A. Cole, Jr.  
Billie Fitzgerald 
Jerry Noffel 
Maureen Rupe 
Ashok Shah, M.D. 
Billy Specht 
Greg Cuculino, M.D. 
Aluino Ochoa, M.D., President/Medical Staff 
Kiran Modi, M.D., Designee/Medical Staff Review Committee 
Francisco Garcia, M.D., Designee/Utilization Management/Medical Records Committee** 
Christopher Manion, M.D., Designee/Credentials and Medical Ethics Committee 
George Mikitarian, President/Chief Executive Officer (Non-voting) 
 
JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Aluino Ochoa, M.D., President/Medical Staff, Chairman 
Pedro Carmona, M.D., Vice President/Medical Staff 
MEC Member – To Be Determined 
MEC Member – To Be Determined 
George Mikitarian, President/Chief Executive Officer (Ex-Officio with Vote) 
 



2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 
PAGE 4 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AD HOC CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE 
 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. (ex-officio) 
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. 
Billie Fitzgerald 
Ashok Shah, M.D. 
 
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M. (ex-officio) 
Stan Retz, CPA 
Herman A. Cole, Jr.  
 

BOARD LIAISON APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
Joint Risk Management Committee 
 
Ashok Shah, M.D.  
 
Medical Staff Review Committee 
 
Ashok Shah, M.D.  
 
North Brevard Medical Support, Inc. 
 
Stan Retz, CPA 
 
 
 
 
    *Medical Staff Representatives 
  **Designated as the alternate to represent Medical Staff in absence of primary delegate. 
The Vice President of the Medical Staff will represent the President of the Medical Staff                                                             
in his absence at all Board meetings.       

 
 
 
 
 
 
(February 2, 2023)



2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 
PAGE 5 
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

 
Ad Hoc Credentials Review Committee – First Monday 
Executive Session     TBD 
 
Quality Committee    – First Monday  
       Noon 
 
Finance Committee    – First Monday 

(Immediately following Quality) 
 
Executive Committee    – First Monday 

(Immediately following Finance) 
 
Board of Directors Executive Session – First Monday 
       (To commence no earlier than  

1:30 p.m.) 
 
Education Committee    – First Monday 

(Immediately following Executive 
Session) 

         
Planning Committee    – First Monday 

(Immediately following Education 
Committee)  

 
Board Meeting    – First Monday 

(To begin no earlier than 2:00 p.m. or 
immediately following the last 
Committee meeting) 
 

Audit Committee    – TBA 
 
Joint Conference Committee   – TBA 
 
Medical Executive Committee  – Third Tuesday 
       5:30 p.m. 
 
Medical Staff     – First Tuesday 

March, June, September, December 
      5:30 p.m. 


	1. Cover Memo
	2. Pension Committee
	Pension Agenda 2-6-23
	I. Review and approval of minutes (December 5, 2022).
	Motion: To recommend approval of the December 5, 2022 minutes as presented.
	I. Pension Actuarial Report as of October 1, 2022 – Mr. Lozen, Foster & Foster
	Motion: To recommend the Finance Committee accept the Pension Plan Actuarial Valuation as of October 1, 2022.
	II. MetLife Annual Plan Review
	III. Quarterly Pension, 403(b) and 457(b) Investment Update
	IV. Adjournment

	Pension Minutes 12-05-2022
	Call to Order
	Review and Approval of Minutes

	Feb 23 ActuarialValuation.pdf
	GASB67-68_Parrish_Medical_Center_Measurement_Date_09.30.2022-wo_Coverletter.pdf
	Balance Sheet 67
	Market Net Assets 67
	Info for Notes 67
	Sponsor NPO 67
	Schedule of NP Changes 67
	Schedule of Contribution 67
	Return Schedule 67
	Info for Notes 68 p1-2
	Info for Notes 68 p3
	FINAL Deferred Flows 68
	Preliminary Deferred Flows 68
	Schedule of NP Changes 68
	Schedule of Contribution 68
	PAGE DIVIDER
	Final Expense 68
	Preliminary Expense 68
	Investment
	Assumption Changes
	Experience



	3. Investment Committee
	Investment Committee Agenda 02-06-23
	PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
	EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM

	Investment Committee Minutes 09-12-22
	Call to Order


	4. Quality Committee
	February Quality 2023
	QUALITY COMMITTEE

	December 2022_Quality

	5. Finance Committee
	February 2023 Finance
	George Mikitarian, President/CEO (non-voting)
	MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023
	FIRST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOMS 2/3/4/5
	CALL TO ORDER
	I. Approval of minutes.
	II. Public Comments
	VIII. Executive Session (if necessary)
	ADJOURNMENT


	December 2022_Finance
	Feb 23 Laboratory Point of Care Hemochron Signature Elite Equipment Request - BOD Memo - January 31 2023 (002)
	Feb 23 Endoscope_Colonoscope Instrumentation and Equipment Lease Buyout Request - BOD Memo - February or March 2023 (003)
	February 2023 Disposals
	Feb 23 ActuarialValuation.pdf
	GASB67-68_Parrish_Medical_Center_Measurement_Date_09.30.2022-wo_Coverletter.pdf
	Balance Sheet 67
	Market Net Assets 67
	Info for Notes 67
	Sponsor NPO 67
	Schedule of NP Changes 67
	Schedule of Contribution 67
	Return Schedule 67
	Info for Notes 68 p1-2
	Info for Notes 68 p3
	FINAL Deferred Flows 68
	Preliminary Deferred Flows 68
	Schedule of NP Changes 68
	Schedule of Contribution 68
	PAGE DIVIDER
	Final Expense 68
	Preliminary Expense 68
	Investment
	Assumption Changes
	Experience



	6. Executive Committee
	February Exec-Com 2023
	ADJOURNMENT

	December 2022_Executive Committee

	7. Education Committee
	February Education 2023
	EDUCATION COMMITTEE

	December 2022_Education

	8. Board of Directors
	February 2023
	I. Pledge of Allegiance
	XVI. Other
	ADJOURNMENT
	NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE...



	New Providers_February 2023
	Slide Number 1
	Welcome New Provider

	December 2022_BOD
	MEC REGULAR SESSION MINUTES - January 17, 2023 0002
	2023 BOD - OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES
	OFFICERS
	Stan Retz, CPA, Chairperson
	FINANCE COMMITTEE
	AUDIT COMMITTEE
	QUALITY COMMITTEE
	JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
	Joint Risk Management Committee
	Medical Staff Review Committee






